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1. INTRODUCTION 

The template serves as a guide for Technical and Vocational Education and Training (TVET) colleges in the 

compilation of annual performance report. It aims to bring about uniformity and logic in the organisation and 

presentation of the annual performance reports by TVET colleges. It also aims to address issues of content and 

format of the TVET colleges’ annual performance reports and bring about standardisation and uniformity thereon. 

 

2. ABBREVIATIONS AND ACRONYMS 

APP    Annual Performance Plan 

COSACSA  College Sports, Arts and Culture South Africa 

COS   Centre of Specialisation 

DHET   Department of Higher Education and Training 

M&E    Monitoring and Evaluation 

MTEF   Medium Term Expenditure Framework 

MTSF   Medium Term Strategic Framework 

NDP   National Development Plan 

NSDS   National Skills Development Strategy 

NSFAS   National Student Financial Aid Scheme 

OPS Plan  Operational Plan 

PQM   Programme Qualification Mix 

PSET   Post-School Education and Training 

SETA   Sector Education and Training Authority 

SSP   Sector Skills Plan 

SWOT   Strengths, weaknesses, opportunities, threats 

TVET   Technical and Vocational Education and Training 

VCET   Vocational and Continuing Education and Training 

WBE   Workplace Based Exposure / Experience 

WIL   Work Integrated Learning 

AFS   Annual Financial Statements 

AGSA   Auditor - General of South Africa 

ASB   Accounting Standards Board 

DHET   Department of Higher Education and Training 

GRAP   Generally, Recognised Accounting Practice 

SARS   South African Revenue Services 

VAT   Value Added Tax 

CET   Continuing Education and Training 

CHIETA  Chemical Industry Education and Training Authority 

ETDP  Education and Training Development Practices Sector Education and Training Authority 

W & R  Whole Sale and Retail Sector Education and Training Authority 

MERSETA  Manufacturing, Engineering and Related Services Sector Education and Training Authority 

NARYSEC  National Rural Youth Service Corporations 

DOL  Department of Labour 

UIF  Unemployment Insurance Fund 
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3. MESSAGE FROM THE COUNCIL CHAIRPERSON  

 

Flavius Mareka TVET college vision and mission provide the roadmap and guide the college to achieve its core business; 

teaching and learning. The vision, mission and values intend to reaffirm the position of Flavius Mareka TVET College as a 

learning institution which is in sync with the needs of its communities. Flavius Mareka TVET College used the PESTEL 

(Political, Economic Social, Technological, Environmental, Legal) approach when performing an analysis of its environment. 

This analysis has assisted to College to live up to its vision. 

 

There is a decline in economy and employment in the Free state, especially Sasolburg. The situation was further aggravated 

by COVID 19 pandemic. These megatrends had a negative impact in attaining strategic targets. The Colleges were closed 

in March 2020 and as a result of lockdown level 5. Teaching and Learning was hampered as the college did not have LMS 

(Learner Management System). Management and lectures worked as a team to ensure that while lives were saved, 

academic year was also saved. 4th Industrial Revolution is an emerging megatrend. The advent of the 4th Industrial 

Revolution has brought with it a window of opportunity to accelerate the introduction of educational technology into the 

learning space. Different platforms were used to ensure that teaching and learning continues despite the challenges.  

 

The success of Flavius Mareka TVET College was as a result of moving in the direction of a dual system. This is a system 

that creates a balance in learning and by integrating theory in the learning institutions with practice in the work place. This 

was done by adopting the Centers of Specialization (COS) model by the college. 

 

Flavius Mareka TVET council, continued and will continue to provide oversight and strategic direction. This was done by 

ensuring that policies and council resolutions were implemented and council committees functioned effectively and 

efficiently. 

 

 

 

Dr SJ Mohapi  

Chairperson of Council 
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4. THE ACCOUNTING OFFICER’S FOREWORD 

 

 

The established tradition for operations at Flavius Mareka TVET College always mandates that plans should set 

the tone for the entire academic year.  They were therefore drawn in 2019 for the year under review with clear 

activities to be carried out by all sections for the 2020 academic and financial year. As always, reaffirmations of 

the plans were made by all sections as work contemplated resumed at the beginning of the year. Important 

activities included the following among others:  

 Registrations of students 

 Monitoring and reporting on the numbers of students registered as the process continued. 

 Coverage of teaching and learning as scheduled by campuses. This included assessments and 

evaluation of students as per time periods identified. 

 Relationships marketing with a view of establishing partnerships and 

 The offering of skills and learnerships as well as their placement for work integrated learning 

 The implementation of varied sporting activities by Student Support and Services Section, counselling of 

students and staff whenever it became necessary; referring those identified to doctors if and when 

necessary; testing for HIV and Aids, High blood pressure and all other possible social and academic ills. 

 Implementation of Human resource management policies; monitoring of same; management of staff 

performance, their mentoring and training. 

 Review of health and safety status in the College premises  

 Review of policies and their conconcomitant procedures and or processes by sections 

 Quarterly reviews on performance based on objectives of the strategic plan 

 Submission of monthly and quarterly reports to: 

o Management teams of campuses 

o The College Management Team 

o Council and its committees as scheduled meetings and  

o The Department of Higher Education and Training 
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The implementation by sections also required reports to be made. The view was to measure the level of efficacy 

attained and therefore even the extent to which objectives set have been achieved. Reports accentuated actual 

achievements against targets set for the College. Notable among them are the numbers which were enrolled for 

the year and which were accordingly compared with the targets. This was done for both the head counts (H/C) 

and the Full time equivalents (FTEs); coverage as recorded in schemes of work, effectiveness and efficacies 

accomplished in attaining targets.  This became the measure of determining logical progression which would 

inform the institution as to its capability of steering its growth and development. 

 

I wish to applaud and heartily thank the College Council, The College Senior Management, management teams 

of all campuses and staff in general for having executed plans indicated splendidly in order to assist the institution 

to live up to the purpose for which it has been established. Accomplishments attained for that year are 

fundamentally due to their cooperation, believe in one another’s strengths and capabilities, discipline and 

commitment in their roles and functions.  

 

Many thanks/khotso 

 

 

 

TS Letho 

Accounting Officer 
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5. STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY AND CONFIRMATION OF ACCURACY  

 

STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY AND CONFIRMATION OF ACCURACY  

 

    To the best of my knowledge and belief, I confirm that: 

 All information and amounts disclosed throughout this annual report are consistent. 

 The annual report has been prepared in accordance with the guidelines issued by the Department of 

Higher Education and Training and Council 

 The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the relevant standards, 

frameworks and guidelines issued by National Treasury. 

 As the accounting officer and principal I am responsible for the preparation of the annual financial 

statements and for the judgements made in this document. 

 As the accounting officer and the principal I am responsible for establishing and implementing a system 

of internal control that has been designed to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and 

reliability of the performance information, the human resources information and the annual financial 

statements. 

 The Auditor-General and/or external auditors express an independent opinion on the annual financial 

statements. 

 

In conclusion, it is my sincere opinion that the annual report fairly reflects the operations, the performance 

information, the human resources information and the financial affairs of Flavius Mareka TVET College for the 

financial year ended 2020/2021 .  

    . 

Many thanks /khotso 

 

 

 

 

TS Letho 

Accounting Officer 
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6. LEGISLATION AND OTHER DIRECTIVES 

 

6.1 LEGISLATIVE FRAMEWORK 

 

Flavius Mareka TVET college is enjoined by Section 44(3) of the Act, read in conjunction with section 25(3) of 

the same Act to prepare and submit to the Minister for Higher Education and Training an annual report. 

 

In terms of Sections 25(3) and 25(4) of the Continuing Education and Training (CET) Colleges Act, No 16 of 2006 

(as amended), public technical and vocational education and training (TVET) colleges are required to produce 

annual financial reports and to comply with any reasonable additional reporting requirement established by the 

Minister.  Moreover, Section 44 of the Act requires colleges to annually report to the Minister in respect of its 

performance and its use of available resources.   

 

In addition, these pieces of legislation govern and steer the college in terms of achievement of its strategic and 

performance objectives.  

 

6.2 LEGISLATIVE AND OTHER MANDATES 

 

In terms of Sections 25(3) and 25(4) of the Continuing Education and Training (CET) Colleges Act, No. 16 of 

2006 (as amended), public technical and vocational education and training (TVET) colleges are required to 

produce annual financial reports and to comply with any reasonable additional reporting requirement established 

by the Minister.  Moreover, Section 44 of the Act requires colleges to annually report to the Minister in respect of 

its performance and its use of available resources. In addition, these pieces of legislation govern and steer the 

college in terms of achievement of its strategic and performance objectives.  

 

6.2.1 CONSTITUTIONAL MANDATE 

 

The Constitution is the supreme law of the Republic and any law or conduct inconsistent with the constitution is invalid; the 

obligations imposed by the constitution must be fulfilled.  All citizens are equally entitled to the rights, privileges and benefits 

of citizenship and, equally, subject to the duties and responsibilities of citizenship. 

 

Section 29(1) of the Constitution states that everyone has a right to a basic education, including adult basic education and 

further education, which the State, through reasonable measures, must make progressively available and accessible.  Sub-

section 2 states that everyone has the right to receive education in the official language or languages of their choice in 

public educational institutions, where that education is reasonably practicable. 
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6.2.2 LEGISLATIVE AND POLICY MANDATES 

 

The Continuing and Further Education and Training (CET) Act, No. 16 of 2016 and as amended, provides for Flavius 

Mareka TVET College to operate as a public TVET college under the auspices of the Department of Higher Education and 

Training.  Further sets of legislation that impact on the TVET colleges sector and its strategic and national imperatives are 

as follows: 

 

o General and Further Education and Training Quality Assurance Act (No 58 of 2001); 

o National Student Financial Aid Scheme Act (No 56 of 1999); 

o National Qualifications Framework (NQF) Act (No 67 of 2008); 

o Public Service Regulations (2016);  

o Public Finance Management Act (1999); 

o Skills Development Act (No 97 of 1998); 

o Skills Development Levies Act (No 9 of 1999);  

o Higher Education (HE) Act (No 101 of 1997); 

 

In addition, the White Paper for Post-School Education and Training mandates delivery and strategic priorities in the TVET 

colleges sector.  Other policy mandates include: 

 

o National Norms and Standards for funding TVET Colleges; 

o National Trade Testing Regulations; 

o National Skills Development Plan; 

o Public TVET College Attendance and Punctuality Policy;  

o Policy on the Conduct of National Examinations and Assessment; 

o Workplace Based Learning Programme Agreement Regulations; 

o SETA Grant Regulations; 

o National Skills Development Strategy; 

 

6.2.3 INSTITUTIONAL POLICIES AND STRATEGIES OVER THE 5 YEAR PLANNING PERIOD 

 

The College has a strategic plan which is aligned to/with the National Development Plan (NDP), the Five Year 

Implementation Plan based on the NDP and MTSF. This are primary tools which assist the College as it strives to provide 

quality education and skills development to create a skilled and capable workforce which will support an inclusive growth 

path that would increase employment. 

 

The most important policies and strategies the college plans to continue to implement or initiate in the five year planning 

period are: 
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6.2.3.1  THE COLLEGE WILL REVIEW AND REVISE THE FOLLOWING POLICIES: 

 Teaching and Learning Policy 

 Student Admission and Selection Policy 

 Student Admissions Annual Plan 

 Assessment and Moderation Policy 

 Language Policy 

 Academic Support  

 Examinations Policy 

 Guidelines for the Conduct and Administration of Examinations in TVET Programmes 

 Strategies to Improve Throughput 

 

6.2.3.2 THE COLLEGE WILL DEVELOP THE FOLLOWING POLICIES REQUIRED TO IMPLEMENT THIS FIVE YEAR STRATEGIC 

PLAN: 

 Part time policy 

 Language policy 

 Examination policy 

 Recruitment and Selection Policy 

 Employment Equity Policy 

 Code of Conduct for Employees 

 Training Policy 

 Leave Policy 

 Health and Safety Policy 

 Data Recovery and Access Control Policy 

 Job Evaluation Policy 

 Performance Management and Development System Policy 

 Marketing Policy 

 

6.2.3.3  THE COLLEGE ENDEAVOURS TO IMPLEMENT THE FOLLOWING STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES / PROJECTS DURING THE 

PLANNING CYCLE: 

 Proper implementation of the recruitment policy and skills funding.  The College provides the funding using the Staff 

Bursary Policy and systems.   

 Request for funding for infrastructure development for four in one workshop at Mphohadi campus. 

 The college infrastructure plan that will address maintenance projects. 

 Lack of awareness for the full implementation of the greening strategy 

 

The above mentioned policies, plans and strategies at the College presents a long-term strategy to increase employment 

through education, vocational training and work experience. 
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7. REPORT OF COUNCIL CHAIRPERSON  

 

The following additional information is also worthwhile to be reported by the college council chairperson as it 

further unpacks some of the topics in the grey box: 

 

7.1 CONSTITUTION OF THE COLLEGE COUNCIL AND GOVERNANCE STRUCTURES  

 

Report on: 

i. Names of council chairperson and members as well as their designated functions. 

 

NO  Name  Designation  

Members serving 

at the date of 

adoption of the 

report 

1 Mohapi SJ Chairperson: College Council Serving  

2 Mabaso C Deputy Chairperson: College Council Serving  

3 Letho TS Principal and Academic Board Chairperson  Serving  

4 Moremi M Chairperson: Finance Committee Serving  

  Mbhalati R Chairperson: Audit Risk  Not Serving  

  Charlie D Chairperson: Planning and Resources  Not Serving  

5 Manoko PD Chairperson: Audit and Risk Committee  Serving  

6 Magubane S Ms Chairperson: Planning and Resources Committee Serving  

7 Khumalo N Chairperson: Conditions of Employment Committee  Not Serving  

  Mbileni-Morema CN External Council Member: Donor  Not Serving 

8 Maseko G External Council Member: Finance  Serving  

9 Sithole TC Mr External Council Member: IT Governance  Serving  

10 Janties N Ms External Council Member: Donor Not Serving  

11 Hlahane PM Mr External Council Member: Curriculum Development  Serving  

12 Ntaje MD Internal Council Member: Support Staff Representative Serving  

13 Lethule RL Internal Council Member: Academic Board Representative Serving  

14 Mbambo L  Internal Council Member: Lecturing Staff Representative Serving  

15 Nyama C Ms Internal Council Member: SRC - Sasolburg Campus Not Serving  

16 Maloka A Ms Internal Council Member: SRC - Kroonstad Campus Not Serving  

 

ii. Appointments made in the year in terms of sections 10(4) and 10(6) of the CET Act.  

NO TITLE SURNAME NAMES POSITION 

1 Mr Manoko Phetole Daniel Chairperson: Audit and Risk Committee  

2 Ms Magubane Sizakele  Chairperson: Conditions of Employment  

3 Ds Jantjies  Portia Nokuthula Council Member : Donor  

4 Mr  Sithole   Thoba Calvin  Council Member : IT Governance  

5 Mr  Hlahane  Paulus Maibi Council Member : Curriculum Development 
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iii. Number of meetings held and for what reason. 

College Council and all its subcommittees held one meeting per quarter totalling to four Council meetings 

in a year and four meetings per subcommittee of Council in the year.  

 

Quarter Subject Start End 

Quarter 1 

Exco Academic Board Mon 2020/02/24 09:00 Mon 2020/02/24 16:30 

Academic Board  Tue 2020/02/25 09:00 Tue 2020/02/25 16:00 

Conditions of Employment Committee  Mon 2020/03/02 09:00 Mon 2020/03/02 16:00 

Planning and Resources Committee Tue 2020/03/03 09:00 Tue 2020/03/03 16:00 

Audit and Risk Management Committee Mon 2020/03/09 09:00 Mon 2020/03/09 16:00 

Finance Committee Mon 2020/03/09 09:00 Mon 2020/03/09 16:00 

Exco College Council Tue 2020/03/17 09:00 Tue 2020/03/17 16:00 

  College Council  Thu 2020/06/04 08:00 Thu 2020/06/04 16:00 

Quarter 2 

Exco Academic Board Fri 2020/06/12 09:00 Fri 2020/06/12 15:00 

Academic Board  Mon 2020/06/15 14:00 Mon 2020/06/15 21:00 

Conditions of Employment Committee  Wed 2020/06/17 09:00 Wed 2020/06/17 16:00 

Planning and Resources Committee Thu 2020/06/18 09:00 Thu 2020/06/18 16:00 

Audit and Risk Management Committee Thu 2020/06/18 09:00 Thu 2020/06/18 16:00 

Finance Committee Fri 2020/06/19 09:00 Fri 2020/06/19 15:00 

Exco College Council Wed 2020/07/01 09:00 Wed 2020/07/01 16:00 

  College Council  Wed 2020/07/08 08:00 Wed 2020/07/08 16:00 

Quarter 3 

Exco Academic Board Mon 2020/08/31 09:00 Mon 2020/08/31 17:30 

Academic Board  Tue 2020/09/01 09:00 Tue 2020/09/01 16:00 

Conditions of Employment Committee  Tue 2020/09/01 09:00 Tue 2020/09/01 16:00 

Planning and Resources Committee Wed 2020/09/02 09:00 Wed 2020/09/02 16:00 

Audit and Risk Management Committee Thu 2020/09/03 09:00 Thu 2020/09/03 16:00 

Finance Committee Wed 2020/09/09 09:00 Wed 2020/09/09 16:00 

Exco College Council Fri 2020/09/18 09:00 Fri 2020/09/18 16:00 

  College Council Wed 2020/09/30 08:00 Wed 2020/09/30 16:00 

Quarter 4 

Exco Academic Board Thu 2020/10/29 09:00 Thu 2020/10/29 16:30 

Academic Board  Thu 2020/11/05 09:00 Thu 2020/11/05 16:00 

Conditions of Employment Committee  Thu 2020/11/05 09:00 Thu 2020/11/05 16:00 

Planning and Resources Committee Mon 2020/11/09 09:00 Mon 2020/11/09 16:00 

Audit and Risk Management Committee Tue 2020/11/10 09:00 Tue 2020/11/10 16:00 

Finance Committee Thu 2020/11/12 09:00 Thu 2020/11/12 16:00 

Exco College Council Thu 2020/11/19 09:00 Thu 2020/11/19 16:00 

  College Council  Fri 2020/11/27 08:00 Fri 2020/11/27 16:00 

 

iv. Performance in terms of its statutory functions, explained in Section 10(1) - (3) of the CET Act. 

Reference may be made to a typical standard College Charter for the required functionality of a College Council.  

 

Reference may be made to a typical standard College Charter for the required functionality of a College Council.  
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7.2 REPORTS BY COMMITTEES OF COUNCIL  

 

Include in this section narrative reports on activities and performance by the: 

 

i. AUDIT COMMITTEE. 

 

1. Introduction  

In terms of section 25 of the Continuing Education and Training Act (Act no.16 of 2006), as amended by the Continuing 

Education and Training Act (Act 3 of 2012), the Council of Flavius Mareka TVET College must “implement internal 

audit and risk management systems which are not inferior to the standards contained in the Public Finance 

Management Act”. In line with this imperative Flavius Mareka College Council constituted the Audit Committee in 

order to carry out this important function. The following members were formally appointed to serve in the same 

committee: 

 

The committee consisted of the members listed below:  

 Chairperson: Mr. R.E Mbhalati 

 Member: Dr C. Mbileni-Morema 

 Member: Mr. M.P Moremi 

 Member: Mr P. Manoko 

 Principal (Accounting Officer): Mr. T.S Letho 

 Deputy Principal (Finance): Ms. A le Roux 

 Assistant Director (M&E): Ms. M.D Mokhampanyane 

 

Mr. R.E Mbhalati was the committee chairperson from the 1st of January 2020 until the 31st of July 2020 when he 

tendered his resignation and the Council appointed Mr P.D Manoko as his successor in the position of the chairperson. 

 

The committee met four (4) times according to its plan which was approved by Council during the year and was 

assisted by the Internal Auditors providing secretarial services: 

03rd of March 2020; 

18th of June 2020; 

04th of September 2020; and 

11th of November 2020. 

 

2. ARCO Responsibilities  

The Audit and Risk Management Committee functions are done effectively as required by the PFMA and Treasury 

Regulations. The Committee reports that it has complied with its responsibilities arising from the principles of section 

38(10) (1) of the PFMA and Treasury Regulation 3.1. The Committee also reports that it has adopted appropriate 
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formal terms of reference as its charter, has regulated its affairs in compliance with this charter and has discharged 

all its responsibilities as contained therein. 

 

The College Monitoring and Evaluation Unit and together with the Internal Auditor unit reported to the Audit and Risk 

Management Committee on a quarterly basis.  

 

3. Risk Management  

The College has a Risk Management Policy approved by the College Council. The Audit and Risk Management 

Committee is accountable to the Council for designing, implementing and monitoring the process of risk management. 

High priority risks are reported and attended to in ach Council meeting. Risk Management at the College is process 

driven by the Executive Management. Audit and Risk Management Committee review the risk register on a quarterly 

basis. 

 

4. The effectiveness of internal controls  

During 2020 the Audit and Risk Management Committee approved a three year rolling strategic internal audit plan for 

the period from 2020 to 2022.  The Internal Audit forms an integral part of the risk management process and system 

of internal control and provides the audit committee and risk management with assurance that the internal controls 

are adequate and effective.  

 

From the various reports of the Internal Auditors, the Audit Report on the annual financial statements, and the 

management report of the auditors, it was noted that no matters were reported that indicate material deficiencies in 

the system of internal control. Accordingly, we can report that the system of internal control over financial reporting for 

the period under review was efficient and effective.  

 

5. Evaluation of Financial Statements  

The Committee approved the engagement letter, terms, audit plan and budgeted audit fees for the external audit 

engagement for the year ended 31 December 2020. The 2020 Financial Statements had been reviewed by the Internal 

Auditors and submitted to the Audit and Risk Committee and recommended for approval by the College Council. 

 

6. Audit and Risk Management Committee Annual Performance Highlights  

6.1 The Committee executed all the functions its functions as required by its charter, PFMA and Treasury Regulations.  

6.2 The Committee maintained a healthy attendance records by its members  

6.3 The Committee ensured that policies for Internal Audit, Risk Management and Fraud prevention have been 

developed and that possible irregularities are followed up immediately when identified  

6.4 The Committee effectively exercised oversight on the work of internal and external auditors  
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7. Audit and Risk Management Committee Annual Performance Challenges  

The Internal Audit Service provider’s contract expiring and appointing the service provider on a month to month as the 

College wanted to appoint a Chief Internal Auditor who will manage the department.   The delay was due to the 

suspension of hiring new staff members by DHET. 

 

8. College Mitigation measures  

The Internal Audit service provider continued to provide services on a month to month basis and also assisted in 

reviewing the annual financial statements prior to them being submitted to the office of the Auditor General for review. 

 

ii. FINANCE COMMITTEE. 

 

1. Introduction 

In terms of section 25 of the Continuing Education and Training Act (Act no.16 of 2006), as amended by 

the Continuing Education and Training Act (Act 3 of 2012), the Council of Flavius Mareka TVET College 

elected the Finance Committee so as to observe, implement the Finance Charter adopted as one of their 

fiduciary to be responsible to the standards contained in the Public Finance Management Act”.  

 

The Committee Composition  

Chairperson     : M.P. Moremi 

Member      : Mr R. Mbhalati  

Member     : Dr G.J. Maseko 

Principal (Accounting Officer)  : Mr T.S. Letho 

Deputy Principal (Finance)   : Ms A le Roux 

 

During the year Mr R Mbhalati resigned from the committee and Mr Manoko appointed by the Council as 

a replacement. 

 

2. Finance Charter 

The Council adopted the Charter and assigned the Committee to execute the functions as follows 

 To monitor the implementation of the Delegation of Authority (DAF) that has been prescribed by the DHET. 

 To take overall responsibility for the review of the appropriateness and applicability of financial policies and 

recommend suitable changes to Exco/Council. 

 To oversee and approve College budget submissions, deviations and quarterly revisions and ensure that the 

outputs to be delivered are specific and consistent with the desired outcomes. 
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 To recommend to Exco/Council, and ensure that the necessary steps are taken to instigate any financial 

related investigations into financial misconduct or maladministration, when College policy processes to report 

these matters have not been followed by management. The provisions of S46 of the CET Act need to be 

followed in this regard. 

 To ensure that an appropriate management information system is established to provide prompt and accurate 

financial information. 

 To consider the quarterly financial reports generated by the Deputy Principal: Finance and ensure that the 

monthly reports are of an acceptable standard and adequately reflect any shortfalls or under-collections in 

budgeted income (as this may impact on the College’s ability to deliver services) as well as any overspending 

(as this may result in unauthorized expenditure). The quarterly report must also project revenue and 

expenditure for the remainder of the year, and show any remedial action proposed by the Deputy Principal- 

Finance (where necessary). 

 To review and recommend to Exco/Council any capital projects, prior to commitment, and to monitor and 

report on the progress thereon. 

 To review and recommend to Exco/Council, any necessary and appropriate increases in estimated total costs 

of projects included in the approved budget, over and above the pre-approved variation in the Supply Chain 

Management Policy, that management are proposing.  

 To review and recommend to Exco/Council any sale or disposal of moveable assets proposed by 

management above the delegation of the Accounting Officer. 

 To review managements business case before submitting to Council for noting and submission to the Minister 

to approve the disposal of immovable assets. 

 To consider and recommend to Exco/Council the write-off of all bad debts or settlement or abandoning of 

legal actions to recover amounts due to the College. 

 To consider and recommend to Exco/Council the write-off resulting from impairment of assets per the 

College’s financial policies.  

 To review and recommend the annual financial statements to Exco/Council. 

 To consider all financial matters relating to the College’s relationship with the Department, NSFAS and any 

other government organ and make appropriate recommendations to Exco/Council, if necessary. 

 

3. Finance Committee Performance Highlights 

 The Committee managed to observe and execute all the functions stipulated in the charter 

 Managed to implement all the adopted policies with activities during the year under review 

 All the quarterly Committee meetings were attended to. 

 The Quarterly Financial Reports were Analysed, Discussed and Recommend for noting to EXCO and Council 

 Submitted al the amended College Financial policies for approval by EXCO and Council 

 Presented the Projected 2021 Financial Budget for approval 

 Submitted the 2019 Annual Financial Statements to Auditor General 

 Enabled the College to achieve the Financial Sustainability and also as a Going Concern 

 The College managed to collect the substantial amount of outstanding debts from NSFAS 
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4. Finance Committee Performance Challenges 

 COVID 19 impact on the management of Colleges Financial Performances 

 Outstanding Debt Collection from student still a challenge due to the impact of COVID 19 

 

5. Finance Committee Performance Mitigation 

 Delayed Debt Collection from student until the end of the financial year 

 

6. Conclusion 

On behalf of the Committee, I will like to thank the Principal, Deputy Principal and the Finance team in 

their dedication, perseverance in performing the task at hand even during the challenging conditions of 

COVID 19. Lastly the Chairperson would like to thank the Committee members for the execution of the 

College mandates accordingly and is highly appreciated. 

 

iii. CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT COMMITTEE.  

 

1. Introduction   

The Conditions of Employment Committee is established by the College legislation to supervise 

governance concerns relating to the provision of human resource services to College employees. A mix 

of external and internal Councillors make up the committee. In 2020, the committee held four pre-

scheduled meetings as required by its Charter. In general, a quorum of members has been present at 

three of the four meetings of the Conditions of Employment Committee. The Council had to reinforce the 

fourth meeting’s quorum by deploying its membership to the committee. The College has implemented 

a variety of strategies to reduce non-attendance and poor attendance to meetings, including holding 

some meetings after hours to accommodate Council members. 

 

The committee has played an important role in overseeing and reporting on issues such as: 

 Recruitment, Selection and appointments;  

 Employment Equity and Transformation;  

 Conditions of Services;  

 Performance Management;  

 Training and Development;  

 Staff establishment; and  

 Labour Relations. 

 

2. Composition of the Committee  
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The membership of the committee was composed of the following members:  

 Khumalo N Chairperson COEC 

 Letho TS  Principal  

 Mabaso C External Councillor Member 

 Ntaje MD  Internal Councillor: Support Staff Representative  

 Mbambo LJ Internal Councillor: Lecturing Staff Representative 

 Tema MJ  Deputy Principal: Corporate (Specialist) 

 Lelosa ED Assistant Director: Human Resources (Specialist) 

 Nekhunguni R Office Manager: Governance and Administration/ Secretary 

 

3. Functions of the Committee  

 To assist Council in overseeing the processes that management operate, to ensure the College 

remunerates employees fairly, responsibly, and in accordance with the Government and 

Department’s norms and the College’s policies.  

 To assist Council’s oversight role, by ensuring that the disclosure of Council members’ 

remuneration, if any, is accurate, complete and transparent; and  

 To assist Council in overseeing the processes that management operate, to ensure that human 

capital, transformation and related matters are properly attended to, in accordance with 

legislation, norms, standards and policies of the College, and report noncompliance to Council 

for its consideration and action plans to rectify non- compliance. 

 

4. Human Resource Management 

This year's staffing levels are shown in Tables 1 and 2. Natural attrition, resignations, and medical 

retirements/boarding accounted for the majority of the staff turnover. Flavius Mareka TVET College also 

used graduate interns to get job experience. In order to be certified as employees of Flavius Mareka 

TVET College, all DHET and College Council personnel undertook a thorough verification procedure. 

 

Table 1 

STAFF ESTABLISHMENT NUMBERS NUMBERS 

Support staff (including management)  103 

Academic staff  109 

 

Table 2 

STAFF ESTABLISHMENT NUMBERS NUMBERS 

PERSAL 122 

College Council (Coltech)   90 
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5. Human Resource Development 

As part of Corporate Services Affairs, the College has been focusing on Human Resource Development 

initiatives. Corporate Services Affairs is responsible for guiding the College's staff development efforts 

and is made up of a varied group of support and academic personnel from all of the College's locations. 

 

More than 150 workers were subjected to a variety of training initiatives. The training covers a wide range 

of employee demographics and profiles. Furthermore, the College strives to give training to all workers, 

but owing to funding restrictions, this is not possible. The HRD Plan has been presented for approval to 

the Conditions of Employment Services Committee. The development efforts for the next three to five 

years are outlined in the plan. This will allow the College to empower Human Capital in order to achieve 

the College's strategic goals. 

 

The College continues to enable a staff performance management and development framework for all 

support and academic employees in 2020. HRD was essential in matching training interventions as 

stated in the performance review, since personal development plans were developed to overcome 

performance gaps. The IQMS system will be used by academic staff until a new system is implemented. 

 

A breakdown of the provided training is tabled below in Table 3  

Staff category Number trained Programme 

Management 5 Risk management 
Monitoring & Evaluation 

Support staff 62 Hygiene & cleaning 
Assessment 
Risk management 
Monitoring & Evaluation 
Moderator 
Work ethics 
Monitoring & coaching 

Lecturers 104 Assessor 
LMS 
Risk Management 
Monitoring & Evaluation 
Moderator 
Work Ethics 
Design & Development Assessment 

TOTAL 171  

 

6. Employment Equity 

Corporate Services Affairs, with the help of the Equality Committee, Senior Management Team and 

Executive Management, continue to offer supervision on the College's employment equity strategy 

execution. The following table summarizes the College's equity profile. 
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Table 3 – Equity Profile (2020) 

FLAVIUS MAREKA TVET  COLLEGE: EMPLOYMENT EQUITY 

Management Staff 

  
  

Female Male   

African White 
Coloured/ 
Indian 

African White 
Coloured/ 
Indian Total 

Band 9 2   4   6 

Band 10 2 3  2   7 

Band 12 1 1 1 1   4 

Band 13    1   1 

Total  5 4 1 8 0 0 18 

                

Educators: Departmental Permanent   

  Female Male   

  
African White 

Coloured/ 
Indian 

African White 
Coloured/ 
Indian Total 

Post Level 1 19 10 1 19 5   54 

Post Level 2 3 1 1 2 2   9 

Post Level 3   1         1 

Total 22 12 2 21 7 0 64 

Educators: College Appointees   

  Female Male   

  
African White 

Coloured/ 
Indian 

African White 
Coloured/ 
Indian Total 

Post Level 1 14 3 0 27 0   44 

Post Level 2 2 1   3 0   6 

Post Level 3 1           1 

Total             51 

                

Admin: Departmental   

  Female Male   

  
African White 

Coloured/ 
Indian 

African White 
Coloured/ 
Indian Total 

SL 4 To SL8 14 8   10     32 

                

Admin: College Appointees   

  Female Male   

  
African White 

Coloured/ 
Indian 

African White 
Coloured/ 
Indian Total 

SL 4 To SL8 16 0   10 0   26 

                

Cos Project: College Appointees   

  Female Male   

  
African White 

Coloured/ 
Indian 

African White 
Coloured/ 
Indian Total 

SL9 2     3 2   7 

                

Service Workers: Dept. Appointees   

  Female Male   

  
African White 

Coloured/ 
Indian 

African White 
Coloured/ 
Indian Total 

SL 2 To SL3 8 0   7     15 

Service Workers: College Appointees   

  Female Male   

  
African White 

Coloured/ 
Indian 

African White 
Coloured/ 
Indian Total 

SL 2 To SL3 13     6 0   19 

                
        Grand Total   232  
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7. Post provision norms  

Conditions or Employment Committee played a role of oversight in the compliance of the Post 

provisioning norms and was part of the appointment of College Implementation Committee (CIC). 

Consultation with staff members, union representatives and management would follow.  

 

The following drafts are submitted as part of administration and compliance to DHET: 

- Proposed Structure: DP Registrar. 

- Desktop matching and placement per chosen structure. 

- Financial Costing for implementation. 

- PPN College allocation 

- Hostel occupation and staff  

 

8. Transformation: Gender Considerations 

 

The total picture of gender transformative endeavours has notably been achieved so far. Females 

appointed staff members surpass the number of male’s staff in 2020 

 

 

EMPLOYMENT EQUITY:  RACE  TRANSFORMATION SCENARIO: A COMPARATIVE VIEW 

Race 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

W 25.96 24.58 20.35 17.37 17.32 16.31 

B/C/I 74.04 75.42 79.65 82.63 82.68 83.69 

 

 

 

 

9. Governance Issues  
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College governance issues, including the modification of HR Policies, have been handled by Conditions 

of Employment Committee (EMPLOYCO). College Council amended and passed several policies. It also 

gave recommendations to the College Council on the filling of vacancies on the College Council and the 

standardizing of Committee Charters (Terms of References). Additionally, the committee recommends 

that all committees of the college adopt a declaration of confidentiality, since this will promote good 

governance. 

 

iv. PLANNING AND RESOURCE COMMITTEE. 

 

1. Introduction  

 

Established in terms of the TVET College Statutes Committee, the Planning and Resources Committee 

(PLANCO) comprises of Flavius Mareka TVET College (FMTVET)’s internal members and external members of 

the FMTVET Council. The internal members include ex-officio members- the FMTVET Principal and Chairperson 

of College Strategic Planning, Coordination and Monitoring Committee (CSPC-MT); Deputy Principals for 

Academic Affairs, Registrar and Student Support Services, Corporate Services and Finance and Supply Chain 

Management; Campus Managers for Sasolburg, Kroonstad and Mphohadi; Assistant Director- Maintenance and 

Facilities and Office Manager- Governance and Administration. 

 

Chairperson of PLANCO  Ms S Magubane 

Council Members  Mr TC Sithole 

 Adv. Mfazi 

 Mr T Mogopoli 

Principal and Accounting Officer Mr Letho and now Ms Chechile (Acting)  

Chairperson (CSPC-MT) Ms MW Motloung 

 

PLANCO is guided by the 2015 Planning and Resources Committee Charter which frames the mandate of 

PLANCO with the sole purpose of developing the strategic plan of FMTC for Council consideration and 

recommendation to the Department of Higher Education and Training (DHET) for approval. 

 

2. Functions 

 

PLANCO is tasked with the responsibility to, among others: 

 

Ensure and oversee the development of strategic plan; its planning, organisation and review; Monitor 

implementation of the FMTC strategic plan through effective provisioning of the College structure, allocation of 
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resources for the attainment of objectives and strategic plan and as stipulated in the FMTC Annual Performance 

Plans; and Recommend the strategic plan to Council for ratification. In addition, PLANCO functions in accordance 

with the King Report on Corporate Governance, 

in particular, King IV governance objectives and principles. 

 

3. Activities and performance 

 

In 2020, PLANCO followed the DHET prescribed planning and budgeting guidelines to steer the College into a 

streamlined and proper planning trajectory. This commenced with the review of the five (5) year Strategic Plan 

(2020/21- 2024/25) together with the review and/or development of the Funding Grid, Annual Performance Plan, 

Teaching and Learning Plan and Operational Plan. The College also approved the Infrastructure and 

Maintenance Plan and funding for identified projects. Even though 2020 was a challenging year due to the 

Covid19 pandemic, the College managed to develop the strategic plan and to follow all recommended DHET and 

College frameworks. The strategic Plan was approved by the DHET Minister. 

PLANCO had to oversee measures to deal with the COVID19 infections at the College. The College held classes 

in a staggered approach to ensure social distancing, accommodate those with comorbidities and staff over sixty 

(60) years old, screening and deep cleaning measures. 

 

These activities were handled on the backdrop of the College’s desire to advance teaching and learning, expand 

learning opportunities for students, expand opportunities for artisans, improve academic quality and success of 

students, enhance efficiencies in the academic and operational systems, ensure infrastructure suitable for 

academic projects, ensure sound governance and leadership and mostly, encourage monitoring and evaluation 

of college performance. 

 

To ensure improvement of College performance, PLANCO initiated and proposed a revised/ new Vision for the 

College. This vision will steer the College forward into a new era, an era of pandemics and advanced industrial 

revolution. There is a need to increase training of artisans in line with the demands of the country and in alignment 

with the National Skills Development Act 97 of 1998, as amended and the National Development Plan (NDP). 

 

3.1 Meetings 

 

PLANCO held four (4) regular meetings as scheduled with own agenda and minutes for the Executive Committee 

of Council (EXCO) and Council ratification. In addition, PLANCO held a special meeting to review and approve 

the strategic plan for submission to the DHET. PLANCO participated in other engagements including the special 

meeting for the review of the former Principal’s position and appointment of the Acting Principal. 
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3.2 Highlights/ Achievements and Challenges 

 

The year 2020 was a challenging one overall, due to the onset of the Covid19 pandemic and national lockdown 

in the country. This happened in March 2020 and had adverse impact on students, potential students, teaching 

and learning and even Council functions. This section covers some of the challenges and achievements despite 

this being a challenging year: 

 

HIGHLIGHTS /ACHIEVEMENTS CHALLENGES 

Successful submission of the FMTC strategic plan 

to Council and the DHET 

TVET Colleges found not ready to fully function in 

a virtual environment 

Provision of the year-plan to Council Decrease in student admissions and registrations 

Oversee implementation of plans Increase in student drop-outs 

Preparing PLANCO reports for EXCO ratification 

and Council approval 

Delayed submission of College reports, 

specifically, the Monitoring and Evaluation Report 

Approval of Infrastructure Management reports 

and ensuring proper utilisation of funds 

Change of PLANCO Chairperson due to 

resignation or departure of members 

Approve Business Continuity Plan to fight 

Covid19 infections 

Challenge in realising set targets 

Advance new Vision to review College direction Outdated College vision and strategic foundations 

Engage College on new ways of work and ways 

of sourcing opportunities 

Funding for artisans diverted to fight the Covid19 

infections with serious impact on College plans. 

Holding all scheduled meetings and Execution of 

all recommended functions. 

 

 

CORRECTIVE MEASURES 

New Chairperson appointed. 

New/revised vision proposed. The other foundations must be reviewed to ensure alignment. 

Council directives on IT and virtual teaching and learning environment essential. 

Donor funding sourced for training of artisans, even at reduced number. More need to be done. 

Oversee timely submission of reports and Monitoring and Evaluation report to be part of reporting 

structure. Ensure adherence to Covid19 Protocols and Guidelines. 

Oversee effective implementation of set targets. 
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4. Conclusion 

 

While this has been a challenging year due to the COVID 19 pandemic, I wish to thank all the members of 

PLANCO for their support and contributions. A special appreciation to the Office Manager-Governance and 

Administration and Chairperson of College Strategic Planning, Coordination and Monitoring, the Principal, 

Chairperson and members of Council. Going forward, the College will need to finalise and implement the new 

vision, review objectives and strategic direction and source sufficient funds to ensure realisation of new vision, 

2021-2024 forward; and ensure technology enhancements for the new world of work, and teaching and learning 

at FMTC. 
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7.3 ACADEMIC BOARD REPORT  

 

Achievements 

The following were attained during the year under review 

 The 2020 Academic Board was reaffirmed by Council as legally constituted 

 Where substitutions of members were made due to various reasons the new members were recruited 

and issued with appointment letters as required by the CET Act, Act number 6 of 2016.  

 Membership consisted of the following as prescribed by the act the following subcommittees were 

created in line with section 15 (c) (i) of the CET Act 16 of 2006 as amended:  

Membership of the sub committees 

o Committee for Academic Planning  

 Chairperson -  Campus Manager: Me L Lourens 

- Ms N Mohlaphuli : The acting Campus Manager 

- Mr T Meloe   : Campus Manager 

- Mr R Lethule   : HOD 

- Me A Mokoena  : ASD: Marketing and Communication  

 

o Committee for Quality of Service Delivery  

 Chairperson – Acting Campus Manager: Me N Mohlaphuli 

- Me J Pienaar  :   HOD 

- Me G Ngobeni  :  HOD 

- Mr. A Nhlapo  :  HOD 

- Me N Mabefu  :  Senior Lecturer  

- Me T.S Zokufa  :  Senior Lecturer 

- Mr. A Amadi  :  Senior Lecturer 

- Me M Moshodi  :   Senior Lecturer 

- Mr J Makoli  :  HOD 

 

o Committee for Student Administration  

 Chairperson –Assistant Director:  Mrs W Motloung 

- Mr J. Baba : Senior Administration Clerk: NC(V) &   Business Studies  

- Ms L. Tau : Senior Administration Clerk: Engineering Studies 

- Me S. Deacon : Senior Administration Clerk: Business Studies 

- Mr T. Setseli : Senior Administration Clerk: NC(V), Skills & Learnerships 

- Me S Cilliers : Assistant Director: Registrations 
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o Students Support Service Committee  

 Chairperson – Mr Ntaje 

- Me TS Zokufa : Senior Lecturer 

- Mr. V Kaoliang : Senior Lecturer 

- Me D Khaile : Health and wellness Official/Social worker 

- Mr. Mohlolo :          Health and Wellness Official/Social Worker  

 

o Research Committee 

 Chairperson – Me A Mokoena 

- Mr. T.S Meloe : Campus Manager 

- Mr. L.R Lethule : HOD 

- Me N Ndaba : Senior Lecturer 

- Mr J Kotjane : Campus Manager 

- Me L Lourens : Campus Manager 

- Me N Mohlaphuli : Acting Campus Manager 

 

 This Academic Board drew its yearly plan of four meetings for both the executive committee and the 

Board itself. The plan was then approved by Council for implementation.  

 Where meetings could not materialise for varied reasons, as implementation was executed, incidents 

were noted accordingly by the secretary so that they could be brought to the attention of Council as 

reports were presented. 

 Both the admissions policy and requirements for admissions were prepared and presented for approval 

by Council.   

 The Board approved the Teaching and Learning Plan together with strategies for improvement of 

examinations results which were presented by the College Teaching and Learning Team.  

 The constitution of the Students Representative Council (SRC) was again also approved as a working 

document pending further scrutiny and quality assurance. 

 Campuses, inter-campuses and Provincial activities planned for the year were approved as they were 

presented by Student Support and Services Team. 

  

The table below illustrates the plan of the board for the year 

 

AB 2020 to 2021 plan of Meetings  
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Committee Dates of 

meetings 

Meetings 

held 

Meetings 

not held 

Reasons for not holding meetings 

EXCO of 

AB 

17/3/2020 Yes - - 

12/6/2020 - √ The Board skipped the date of 

12/6/2020 because of lockdown 

14/9/2020 - -  

13/11/2020 - -  

     

AB 

25/3/2020 Yes - - 

23/6/2020 - √ The meeting contemplated did not 

continue because it could not quorate. 

22/9/2020 -   

23/11/2020 -  

 

 

Students Registrations  

1st Quarter registrations 

 

Achievements 

 As always, Students’ Registrations Section drew its plan in advance before the end of the preceding 

year. The table below indicates what was contemplated.    

 However, changes on same had to be made upon opening of the College because of the prevalence of 

COVID-19.  

 The end dates of the process were moved from February 06, 2020 to January 24, 2020.  

 

Study Direction Start Date End Date Deviation Comments 

S1 Business Studies & NCV January 14, 

2020 

January 24, 

2020 

Registration extended 

to Feb 06, 2020 

The extension was due 

to operational matters 

T1 Engineering Studies & 

PLP 

January 14, 

2020 

January 14, 

2020 

 

 

Total Head Counts and FTEs Enrolled  

 

Those are indicated in the table which follows. 

 The total number of head counts which were to be achieved for the year is 10, 406 
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 The figures below indicate enrolment of the College for this time period – January 2020 to March 2020 which are 

also compared to those of 2019 

 The total number of students which were enrolled was 6064. This surpassed 5422 which was obtained in 2019 

during the same time period. 

 The same is true with all campuses except with Kroonstad Campus whose figures dropped by one (01). 

 The difference between the total number enrolled meant that the College had to obtain 4, 342 in order to reach 

the target planned as indicated, 

 

HEAD COUNTS TARGETS FOR 2020 ACADEMIC YEAR= 10, 406 

ACHIEVED HEAD COUNTS: JANUARY – MARCH 2020 TIME PERIOD 

CAMPUS Business Studies Engineering 

Studies 

NCV PLP TOTAL 

2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 

SASOLBURG 1158 1457 1739 1772 250 329 0 0 3145 3558 

KROONSTAD 1250 1230 N/A N/A 279 298 N/A N/A 1529 1528 

MPHOHADI 287 466 461 449 N/A N/A N/A 63 748 978 

TOTAL 2693 3153 2200 2221 529 627 N/A 63 5422 6064 

 

Total FTEs enrolled 

 

FTEs TARGETS FOR 2020 ACADEMIC YEAR= 3,946.00 

ACHIEVED HEAD COUNTS: JANUARY – MARCH 2020 TIME PERIOD 

CAMPUS Business Studies Engineering 

Studies 

NCV PLP TOTAL 

2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 

SASOLBURG 495.71 659.28 378.43 437.08 211.28 303.2 0 0 1085.4 1399.56 

KROONSTAD 552.00 550.75 N/A N/A 247.53 265.41 N/A N/A 799.53 816.16 

MPHOHADI 152,13 223,88 121.70 130.2 N/A N/A N/A 31.5 273.83 385.58 

TOTAL  1433.9  567.28  568.61  31.5 2,131.76 2,601.3 

 

2nd Quarter Registrations 

The implementation of the operational plan was confronted by the scourge of COVID -19. This led to the 

cancellation of registrations. The understanding was that if more students would be enrolled, the total number of 

students would make it difficult to implement some of the protocols like social distancing. As such efforts of 

mitigating the spread of the pandemic would be compromised. The table below indicates how activities for this 

quarter had to be changed as a result of the challenge in question. 
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T2 Engineering Studies  May 04, 2020 May 13, 2020 No registrations due to 

the national lockdown 

No intake due to 

COVID-19 & 

lockdown 

S2 Business Studies July 07, 2020 July 17, 2020 No registrations 

T3 Engineering Studies September 11, 

2020 

September 11, 

2020 

No registrations 

 

Achievements 

 Registrations could not be conducted in line with planning because of lockdown 

Challenges 

 Non-registration of students at the beginning of the quarter reduced the number of students which was 

planned 

 Projected budgets of the financial year were also negatively affected 

 Meaningful coverage of lecturing was also affected. 

 Trimester three (3) students’ registrations was also out of the question 

Solutions 

 The College started to invest in virtual teaching and learning platform to interface face-to-face teaching 

and learning 

 The project manager for the task was appointed to develop Learning Management System (LMS).. The 

project was successfully completed  

 

7.4 STUDENT REPRESENTATIVE COUNCIL REPORT. 

Include in this section a narrative report on the constitution, activities and performance by the Student 

Representative Council. 

 

The college Student Support Services unit should be in a position to provide information and structure in terms 

of this report. 

 

The SRC elections process started on the 7th of February 2020 and the announcement of the newly elected SRC 

was expected on 21 February 2020. However, there was a slow response from student population to participate 

on the SRC election processes for Mphohadi campus. Sasolburg and Kroonstad campuses concluded their 

elections successfully while Mphohadi campus was having slow response and those who had interest to 

participate they were not qualifying as per SRC constitution. The College management, campus management 

and Student Support Services unit intervened but Mphohadi students still had no interest whatsoever. 

Pronouncement of hard lockdown came at the time interventions were tried on without positive results. 
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Upon re-opening of Colleges on the 1st of June 2020, Mphohadi students still were not interested despite many 

interventions and encouragement from both Academic board and College Council. The two elected SRC from 

Kroonstad and Sasolburg were participating in several College committees and managed to attend DHET and 

NSFAS virtual meetings. Due to the covid-19 regulations, which prohibited large gatherings to take place, there 

were sporting activities that took place. The two elected campus SRC were provided with College branded attire 

from their SRC budget. The SRC budget also managed to procure Sports attire and equipment for three 

campuses. 

 

Two of our SRC members emerged to be in leadership of the Provincial SATVETSA conference organised by 

DHET and subsequently participate on the National SATVETSA conference held in Cape Town in October 2020. 
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PART C: PERFORMANCE INFORMATION 
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8.  COLLEGE PERFORMANCE AND ORGANISATIONAL ENVIRONMENT 

The opening of the year 2020 was no different from all others which preceded. Students registrations, and 

teaching and learning were safely conducted as in the past without any hindrance.  

 

However, in March 2020, circumstances changed to become unusual due to the prevalence of COVID-19. 

Campuses were closed, teaching and learning had to be conducted remotely, by employing novel approaches 

and methods. Where contact classes were permissible social distancing was to be strictly enforced including. In 

addition, sanitisation and the wearing of masks became obligatory as well as fumigation of classrooms. All these 

were based on protocols issued by government departments such as the Department of Health.   

 

The seriousness of the situation compelled that the second semester and trimester three registrations should be 

completely stopped. By and large teaching and learning, student support and services were negatively affected 

as the academic year got diminished. The normal academic calendar had to be restructured in such a way that 

measures of saving lives would also be integrated into the grand scheme of things.  

 

Achievements 

The restructuring of the College tuition and examinations Calendar 

 The table below shows the calendar of programmes before the scourge of COVID-19 Virus 

 The academic calendar was restructured as indicated in the second one 

 Tuition time for Trimester One (01) was almost over when the lockdown was instituted. Continuous 

assessments tests had already been administered in almost all classes. 

 The only assessments which were outstanding were for Report 191 Natural Science students. This was 

administered accordingly as well. 

 Test number two (02) was also administered accordingly in line with the plan during the second week of 

reopening as well as two (02) NC(V) Engineering assessments.  

 The time-table for examinations was already made available. Sittings for same were just about to start. 

 The arrangements for tuition after reopening lasted from the 10/06/2020 to 10/07/2020. They included 

preparing students for examinations 

 Trimester two (T2) started on September 15, 2020 because the last examinations results were released 

on September 07, 2020. It ended on November 04, 2020 before November 06, 2020 examinations 

started. 

 This meant that Trimester three (T3), which was to start on 07/09/2020 initially and come to an end on 

13/11/2020, was not going to be there anymore 

 In the like manner, change was made regarding semester programmes 
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 Semester one (S1), which was scheduled to start on January 20,2020, would then continue until 

November November 30, 2020. That meant the College, like all others, would have only one Semester 

and not two (02) anymore. 

 NC(V) Programmes had equally been affected. The new calendar showed clearly that what would be 

seen as Term two (T2) was no longer there 

 All these were as a result of lock down which was instituted because of COVID-19 Virus. Existing plans 

had thus been adjusted as measures of mitigating possibilities of contracting COVID-19 Virus. 

 

The College Tuition and Examinations Calendar Before COVID-19 Virus and lockdown 

 

PROGRAMS BEFORE THE SCOURGE OF COVID -19 

 ENGINEERING STUDIES BUSINESS 

STUDIES 

NC(V) STUDIES 

 T1 T2 T3 S1 S2 Term1 Term 2 Term 3 Term 4 

Tuition Dates 20/01/-

27/03 

11/05-

17/07 

07/09-

13/11 

20/01-

20/03 

13/07 -

18/09 

20/01- 20/03 31/03-

12/06 

07/07-18/09 29/09-23/10 

Examination Dates 30/03 -

21/04 

20/07 -

07/08 

16/11- 

04/12  

22/05 – 

12/06 

09/11 -

30./11 

17/02 -16/03 - 14 Days internal 

Exams 

26/10 – 01/12 

 

College Tuition and Examinations Calendar During the Scourge of COVID -19Virus Experience 

 

PROGRAMS BEFORE THE SCOURGE OF COVID -19 

 ENGINEERING STUDIES BUSINESS 

STUDIES 

NC(V) STUDIES 

 T1 T2 S1 Term1 Term 

2 

Term 3 Term 4 

Tuition Dates 10/06 – 10/07 31/08 -20/11 25/06 – 15/09 20/01 -20/03 - 13/07 -21/08 11/03 -23/11 

Examination Dates 02/07 – 28/07 09/11 -04/12 07/09 -23/10 17/02 -16/03 - 14 Days Internal Exam 10/11 -11/12 

 

Teaching and learning 

Remote teaching and learning during COVID-19 Alert Levels Four, Three and One Lock down Period. 

 The table below shows how campuses improved to try and save the academic year as a result of the 

scourge of COVID -19 Virus and the resultant lockdown instituted to combat its effects on education and 

the lives of all within the country and therefore even within education institutions. 

 Lessons continued to be uploaded on the College website as well as tips on how to study. 

 The project of developing the College‘s Learning Management System (LMS) was also continuing and 

was finally completed. 
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 The purpose was to bring about a more stable, effective and efficient manner of implementing remote 

teaching and learning.  

 In the meantime, what was improvised in order to continue with teaching and learning is depicted below: 

 

The Remote teaching and learning plan 

Delivery Mode Participants and content Assistance 

 Uploading lessons on 

the College Website 

for students 

 Study tips shared with 

students on the 

website 

 All lecturers were allowed to submit 

lessons 

 Lecturers decided on the content of 

their presentations based on 

progress with their varied syllabi 

 Virtual meetings started to be held 

with HODs and Senior Lecturers 

 The College 

website was zero –

rated 

 Lecturers were 

assisted with 2 Gig 

data on a monthly 

basis 

   

The restructuring of classes when the College reopened 

 Classes remained restructured because of the following critical mandatory considerations:  

 To maintain a 33% threshold population of students at a time within the campuses and the Central Office 

 Ensure social distancing of at least 1.5 meters even in classes 

 To divide classes in instances where students’ numbers were too large to make 1.5 meters distancing 

between them impossible. 

 Where classes had forty (40) students in number, they were divided into two so that each would be made 

up of twenty (20).  

 The same principle was applied even where students were thirty (30) or fifteen (15) in number but 

accommodated in a class whose size could not allow a minimum of 1.5 meters social distancing of 

occupants.    

 Rotating classes between face-to-face attendance and virtual teaching where levels of classes had been 

divided into more than one to enable social distancing  

 Extended tuition week from five days (5 days) to six days (6 days) in order to ensure that all classes still 

had a five days’ tuition time even though they would be rotated between face-to-face and virtual mode of 

offering lessons. 

 The College continued to use remote online instruction platforms and face –to- face teaching and 

learning.  

 The understanding was that this would also continue to accommodate students who would need 

additional support in teaching and learning 

 Attempts to develop the College’s Moodle continued until it was finally completed and launched. 
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Integration of measures of combating COVID -19 into Teaching and Learning  

 

Protocols as passed by government required that measures of combating possibilities of contracting COVID-19 should be 

applied in all activities implemented by the institution. As a result, steps taken included the following: 

 

 Staff members with comorbidities and those who were sixty years (60) old and above were advised to 

work from their homes.  

 This was discussed with supervisors and approved by the Principal. 

 Critical activities which continued to be performed were the following among others: 

 Daily screening of staff and students to determine symptoms of having contracted COVID -19 

 Orientation and training of staff and students on how to conduct themselves to avoid exposure 

to possibilities of contracting the virus were done. 

 The following among others continued to be maintained:  

 A distance of at least 1.5 meters away from one another in all activities 

 Washing of hands repeatedly  

 Sanitising as chores were carried out 

 The wearing of masks at all times 

 Cleaning of hands routinely and the environment  

 

Status of infections of COVID-19 and the possible impact on teaching and learning 

 

The table below depicts the experiences of colleges in the Free State. The number of students who were 

infected differed with colleges. In the same way, the number of staff infected varied. Fatalities were however not 

there except only one in one of the colleges 

Impact 

 Massive workload with shortened calendar was common in all colleges 

 There was a feeling that the quality of teaching and learning was affected negatively in spite of all 

attempts made to safe teaching and learning as well as lives 

 There was uncertainty and emotional stress in students and staff 

 Changes of the modes of delivery created tension because of lack of resources in the colleges 

 There was less contact time and pressure to conclude the syllabi  

 The affected sites and areas were closed to allow disinfection and cleaning in order to prevent the 

spread of the virus. 

 Individual colleges assessed the level of risks to which they believed they were exposed. 
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The Impact of COVID -19 Virus on the Free State Colleges 

 

TVET 

Colleges 

No of sites No of Staff 

infected 

No of students 

infected 

No of 

recoveries 

No of 

fatalities 

Total Risk 

Flavius 

Mareka 
4 20 7 27 0 27 Medium 

Goldfields 4 11 19 4 0 30 Medium 

Maluti 7 6 8 7 1 14 Low 

Motheo 7 29 11 21 0 40 High 

 

10. Human Resource Management 

The College has the Human resources subsection which looks after the welfare of all the employees among 

things. The 2020 staff establishment of Flavius Mareka TVET College stood as indicated in the table below:  

2020 staff establishment is presented in Table 1 & 2. 

 

Table 1 

STAFF ESTABLISHMENT NUMBERS NUMBERS 

Support staff (including management)  103 

Academic staff  109 

TOTAL 212 

 

Table 2 

STAFF ESTABLISHMENT NUMBERS NUMBERS 

PERSAL 122 

College Council (Coltech)   90 

TOTAL 212 

 

Human Resource Development 

The College works on its Human Resource Development Plan yearly through the Corporate Services Section. 

The plan includes important matters such as training interventions which are necessary for the improvement of 

skills which have been acquired by staff. This development of the work force is one of the priorities of the College 

which must always be given due attention. This is done to ensure that the strategic objective and support of the 

core business of the College is realised with increased efficacy of the available manpower.  

 

Part of training needs were derived from the implementation of Performance Management Development System 

(PMDS) as expected.  Personal Development Plans were formulated based on observed performance gaps. 
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They came in handy to advise as to which relevant training needs should be addressed in order to fill up 

performance gaps of support staff.  In the case of the teaching staff the Integrated Quality Management System 

(IQMS) was used for the same purpose. The two are standards employed to identify and justify training which 

must, at a given point in time, be sourced for staff and it is in line with policy 

 

On the basis of the said understanding, the table below indicates the training which was implemented in 2020 

amidst the COVID -19 circumstances. The following can be observed in the table: 

 During the year under review, hundred and seventy- one (171) employees were trained.  

 Various programmes for training were considered in line with felt needs within the different sections. 

They included: Risk management, monitoring and evaluation, hygiene and cleaning, assessment, 

moderator and work ethics among others. 

 Transformation considerations were largely considered as well in the plan. Female staff members 

were therefore in the majority where possible.  

Staff 
category 

Number 
trained 

Programme Gender Race 

F M A W I C 

Management 5  Risk management 

 Monitoring & Evaluation 
3 2 3 1 1 0 

Support staff 62  Hygiene & cleaning 

 Assessment 

 Risk management 

 Monitoring & Evaluation 

 Moderator 

 Work ethics 

 Monitoring & coaching 

37 25 57 5 0 0 

Lecturers 104  Assessor 

 LMS 

 Risk Management 

 Monitoring & Evaluation 

 Moderator 

 Work Ethics 

 Design & Development Assessment 

44 60 71 31 1 1 

TOTAL 171  84 87 131 37 2 1 

 

Transformation at Flavius Mareka TVET College 

The process of change in the institution has always been ongoing. This is done in various sections of the College 

by managers and staff under the auspices of the College Senior Management Team led by the Principal.  The 

team was made up with officials in the following positions: 

Principal 
Deputy Principals in:  Finance and Supply Chain 

Corporate Section 
     Academic Section and 
Campus Managers of the following: 
    Kroonstad 
    Mphohadi 
    Sasolburg  
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While changes were made in the various sections led by the said managers, the report accentuates those which 

were made in human resources particularly and with respect to race. The table has been drawn with comparative 

figures to illustrate the changes which have always been made. Among observations, the following can be said: 

 Efforts of transforming the College were ongoing from years in the past.  

 Achievements made are indicated in the table below 

Transformation at FMTVETC 

Colour 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

W 25,96 24,58 20,35 17,37 17,32 17,54 

B/C/I 74,04 75,42 79,65 82,63 82,68 82,46 

 

Staff turnover 

The effects of social mobility, inevitable though it was, did not have much impact on the College. The table below 

attests to same 

 

FLAVIUS MAREKSA TVET COLLEGE 

2020- 2021 FINANCIAL PERIOD 
Total No of staff  (Separation & Additional) 

Q1: (230) = 230 
Q2: (230+5-4) =231 
Q3: (232+4-2) = 233 
Q4 : 

Total staff Q3 : 233 

No Quarters 
Category of 
staff 

No of 
Staff 

No of  No 
additions 

TOR % Total & notes 
separations 

1 Q1 Educator 113     0,00   

    OBE 6     0,00   

    Support 106     0,00 
  

    S/Management 5     0,00 

Total 
230 0 0     

230     

2 Q2 Educator 113   3 0,00 
Appointed 3 Lecturers 

    OBE 6     0,00 

    Support 106 4 2 3,77 

I support staff resigned  and 2 went on 
retirement, I cleaner was appointed and CoS 
project manager  

    S/Management 5 0 0 0,00   

Total 
230 4 5     

231     

3 Q3 Educator 116   3 0,00 
3 Lecturers were appointed  

    OBE 6 1   16,67 

    Support 104 1 1 0,96 A campus Manger was terminated and I 
cleaner went on retirement     S/Management 5     0,00 

Total 
231 2 4     

233     

4 Q4 Educator 119     0,00 
  

    OBE 5     0,00 

    Support 104     0,00   

    S/Management 5     0,00   

Total 
233 0 0     

233     
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8. COLLEGE PERFORMANCE AND ORGANISATIONAL ENVIRONMENT 

 

1.1. MARKETING AND COMMUNICATIONS. 

 

Distribution of student per geographic area and Headcounts of all Programmes – Number of students per 

Geographical area, the total number of students registered at Flavius Mareka College is 8257 for the year January 

– September 2020.See above attached Template.The total number of student profile for the year 2020 is 8257. 

 

The Integrated Marketing and Communications Strategy of College evidence a different, comprehensive 

approach to the external marketing and Communication strategy even during the COVID 19 pandemic. This 

strategy serves as a guide to assist with redesigning the brand perception, enhancing awareness of the college, 

encouraging student to apply in time and increase student enrolment figures in line with the strategies of the 

College. The implementation of this strategy will also encourage the establishment of an internal culture and pride 

by encourage commitment among all members of the Flavius Mareka TVET College communities comprising 

donors, staff, students, government departments and other stakeholders.  

 

The Marketing and Communications Department aims to disseminate a positive, persuasive, brief and 

inspirational message about Flavius Mareka TVET College to both potential and existing students, Alumni and 

Communities surrounding all college catchment areas. Future goals and objectives intend to address the 

development of brand awareness, the decline in enrolments in some areas and primarily the promotion of a 

quality vocational education which will meet the developmental and training expectations of our clients and so 

enhance the perception of the College among within the surrounding community. 

Contribution of the Marketing and Communications Department is also committed to provide its campuses and 

partners with marketing services which enhance the image of the College in all areas of excellence. This was 

possible even with the COVID 19 pandemic during 2020. The marketing team consistently strives to achieve the 

following objectives in support of the College Integrated and communication strategy amongst others:  

• Increase the number of skilled youths by expanding access to education and training for the youth. 

• promote the Corporate Identity, brand awareness, support brand personality, create goodwill of the College  

• Management and coordination of College events.  

• Career Exhibitions, Business Breakfast, Open Days, Media Relation Advertising Campaign and Roadshows. 

 

i. The achievements of the administrative structures and resources, regarding both personnel and 

systems, should be assessed in terms of realistic expectations. 

 

HUMAN RESOURCES  

Through understanding of the entity and its environment the following policies were approved or reviewed during the year 

under review:  
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1. Change Management Policy  

2. Policy on Tracking and Maintenance of an Audit Trail  

3. Policy on Induction  

4. Policy on Retention Disposal and Custody  

5. Code of conduct – non-teaching  

6. Policy on HIV and AIDS 

7.  Policy on Smoking 

8. Policy on Overtime 

9. Training Policy  

10. Policy on recruitment and selection of educators 

11. Policy on recruitment and selection of support staff 

12. Policy on Human Resource File information 

13. Policy on Exit Interviews 

14. Health and Safety policy  

TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT 

The development of the workforce is priority to realise the strategic objectives and support the core business of 

the College. Below is the support provided during the mist of COVID 19. 

 

 

  

Staff Category Number trained Programme 
Gender Race 

F M A W I C 

Managers 5  Risk Management  

 Monitoring & Evaluation 
3 2 3 1 1 0 

Support Staff 62  Hygiene & Cleaning 

 Assessor 

 Risk Management 

 Monitoring & Evaluation 

 Moderator 

 Work Ethics 

 Mentoring & Coaching 

37 25 57 5 0 0 

Lecturers 104  Assessor 

 LMS 

 Risk Management 

 Monitoring & Evaluation 

 Moderator 

 Work Ethics 

 Design & Develop Assessments 

44 60 71 31 1 1 

Total 171  84 87 131 37 2 1 
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STAFFING 

Utilisation of staff and its compliment were controlled and managed effectively to support set objectives in the 

year under review. 

  EE PLAN TARGETS FOR 2019 PER LEVEL  

STAFF ESTABLISHMENT ACCORDING TO POST LEVEL AND GENDER ACTUAL   

POST LEVEL MALE FEMALE TOTAL EQUITY EQUITY TARGET 

EDUCATORS       % Male % Female GENDER 

POST LEVEL 1 INCL 

LEARNERSHIPS 50 47 97 51.55 48.45 F 

POST LEVEL 2 8 8 16 50.00 50.00 F 

POST LEVEL 3 EDU 0 2 2 0.00 100.00 M 

MANAGEMENT             

SL 9 MANAGERS 

(ASD AND OBE) 10 2 12 83.33 16.67 F 

SL 10 MANAGERS 

(ASD AND OBE) 2 5 7 28.57 71.43 M 

SENIOR MANAGEMENT 2 3 5 40.00 60.00 M 

ADMINISTRATION             

SL4 2 0 2 100.00 0.00 F 

SL5 15 24 39 38.46 61.54 M 

SL6 1 4 5 20.00 80.00 M 

SL7 4 8 12 33.33 66.67 M 

SL8 1 1 2 50.00 50.00 M 

SERVICE STAFF             

SL2 10 20 30 33.33 66.67 M 

SL3 3 1 4 75.00 25.00 F 

TOTAL 108 125 233 46.35 53.65 M 

 

INFRASTRUCTURE AND MAINTENANCE 

 

Although 2020 has been a very challenging year for all South Africans and has hit hard on the construction 

industry with having to temporary shut down operations, Flavius Mareka TVET College was never sparred. 

 

The College managed to proceed with applications in an attempt to fully utilise the allocated fund from the 

Department of Higher Education and Training in the shortened period of 2020, immediately after COVID 19 

restriction were reduced. The College managed to kickstart 8 approved projects to the total value of R 

32 986 904,61. Further from the approved and implemented projects in 2020, the College managed to fully 

complete 3 projects and these are Electrical Compliance Projects to the value of R 807 477,25. 
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Student support services and – extra circular activities.   

Athletics 

The Campuses had trials for different athletic codes with an objective to have a team that will represent the College at the 

scheduled Provincial College Athletic Meeting. It was unfortunate that the anticipated Provincial trials could not take place 

as they were scheduled for first week of April 2020 and national hard lockdown was announced to start on 27 March 

2020.  

The other sporting activities which were initially planned as mentioned below were of contact nature and had to be 

stopped and adhere to covid-19 regulations which prohibited all sporting activities: 

 Campus trials 

 College intercampus games 

 Provincial ball games 

 Provincial arts & culture competition 

 Provincial mathematics Olympiad  

 National ball games 

 National arts & culture competition 
 

Health and Wellness 

The College embarked on the Students health and wellness activities throughout the year except during hard lockdown 

for promoting and maintaining of the healthy lifestyle. These health activities were only possible because of good relations 

and partnership with health service providers such as Department of Health, SANBS and Higher health and these 

activities included the following: 

 HIV testing & counselling. 

 Psychosocial counselling 

 Glucose 

 Blood pressure 

 Body Mass Index 

 Healthy diet 

 Pregnancy testing 

 STI testing 

 Substance abuse 

 Blood donation 
 

The turnout of students was not as anticipated as students were attending classes on different days and as they were 

returning to the College in a staggered manner due to covid-19 regulations. The above-mentioned services were still 

taking place under strict adherence to the regulations. It must be noted that these services are very crucial for the health 

wellbeing of the students and even under the strict regulations, the College did its outmost best to ensure that they are 

performed even though they were at a very small scale due to reasons provided above. The psychosocial support was 

offered to the student to help them cope with the day-to-day challenges. These services were offered through counselling 

sessions, which guarantees the confidentiality of the discussions between the students and the social worker.   

Career guidance 
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Career guidance was provided to all our new students to assist them in making the right career choices. During all our 

registration period this service was provided in all three campuses. All new students did write CAP test for them to be 

advised on career choice that is suitable for them. The College also ensured that one on one sessions for career advise 

are available through office visit by students and other services included the following: 

 CV writing 

 Study tips 

 Exam preparation 

 Time management 

ii. Relationships with the community in relation to academic and corporate services.  

 

It has been the college vision to expand beyond the 3 campuses to ensure that the economy of the area in which 

the college chooses to expand to is developed, furthermore creating job opportunities, and bringing higher 

education to the doorsteps of those communities. This was done through programmes expansion to the 

communities of Frankfort and Heilbron. As part of community enrichment and development, the college donated 

Computer assets to Gugulethu Primary School in Frankfort during the year 2020. The school was elected based 

on the relationship it has with the College for the past number of years by accommodating the Educare at 

Frankfort Satellite Campus.   

 

The year 2020 saw the Social Media visibility and usage advancing with the participation of our communities 

because of the pandemic. This platform was used to inform communities about opportunities and courses at the 

College and during registrations cycles using registration posters and Newspapers as well. During the year under 

review, the College took part in events like e.g. The Mandela Day by helping communities in different way such 

as Cleaning, Cooking, and Painting of Old Age homes, Centre’s for Disabled Children, local Schools with learners 

from disadvantage backgrounds, donating of Sanitary Towels, Polish for school shoes and Toiletries for both 

boys and girls.  

 

Skills Development in Construction related skills acquired by local community members during site employment, 

skills include Brick laying, Plumbing and other trades. Local Community Development in Construction of new 

Workshops to enable training and education of trades/skills at a closer radius to the communities and Community 

empowerment through local labour employment and Sub Contracting was realized. 

 

College Sporting facilities were made available to a variety of community sporting activities. The College further 

had to foster relationships with various neighbouring industries in Sasolburg and Kroonstad to enable the 

placement of staff in industry for work exposure in their specific trades. This has not only assisted with upskill of 

our lecturing staff but assisted our students to have better understanding of the subjects content and practical 

knowledge.  
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8. PERFORMANCE REPORTING  

 

Flavius Mareka TVET College is situated within the Fezile Dabi District in the Northern Free State. This District is made up 

of the following municipalities: Metsi – Maholo, Mafube, Ngwathe and Moqhaka. These constitute the catchment area for 

prospective students to be enrolled in the College. The district is known to be the smallest of all others in the Free State 

Province. It also follows that its population is also relatively smaller. Industries and other business concerns in this area are 

also relatively few and they are particularly within the Sasolburg Town in the Metsi Maholo Municipality where SASOL Firm 

with its various branches is situated. Few coalmines are also available in this place. These industries are providers of 

employment within this area in addition to local government departments, which are available, and schools from which the 

College draws its prospective students. 

 

Other towns like Frankfort in the Mafube Municipality, Kroonstad in Moqhaka, Heilbron and Parys in Ngwathe are full of 

stores, and cafes in the main. They are mostly, the main providers of employment to the majority of the semi - skilled and 

the unskilled people in these places. They therefore support the socio - economic lives of the populace within the district. 

Informal settlements abound throughout the district and particularly in the locations. They are increased by semi – 

urbanisation and migration which are increasing in leaps and bounds. Otherwise, self – employment is also visible in the 

form of street vendors and paddlers. They are seen in large numbers in the streets of these towns. The district is largely 

rural and suitable for agriculture. There are many expanse farms in all the municipalities, which range from stock and various 

types of crop farming. These are also providers of employment to the rural inhabitants. 

 

This College is the only tertiary institution which provides education and training within the district. It is therefore the main 

hope for career paths of the many prospective students from the towns in the municipalities and their rural areas. Experience 

has shown nevertheless that large numbers of students who enrol in the College also come from other districts of the 

province, other provinces like Gauteng and from foreign countries such as Lesotho, Democratic Republic of Congo, 

Zimbabwe and Somalia among others. 

 

As part of the country experiencing large unemployment figures which are rising by the years, Fezile Dabi is characterised 

by fearsome unemployment. This was lately exacerbated by the ongoing closure of some of the mines and the scaling 

down of employees by various industries including SASOL. The quality of life of the populace which in the main hinges on 

the buying power as a result of people being 2020 Performance Reporting Template 

 

employed in their numbers has therefore been critically affected. This has eventually affected even the ability of paying for 

tuition in the institutions of higher learning like Flavius Mareka TVET College. Large numbers of students who have enrolled 

are faced with this enormous challenge. The effectiveness of government, with its different departments in all its spheres, 

SETAs, businesses and private organisations in the attempt to work cooperatively with the College to assist students with 

bursaries and placement for work experience on this score, has increasingly become very critical. 
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10.1 ANNUAL PERFORMANCE ACHIEVEMENTS  

STRATEGIC 

OUTCOME 

 
 

OUTPUTS  OUTPUT 

PERFORMANCE 

INDICATORS  

TVET 

COLLEGE 

2020 

PLANNED 

TARGET 

TVET 

COLLEGE 2020 

ACHIEVEMENT 
EXPLANATORY REMARKS 

SO 1 
Expanded 
access to TVET 
college 
opportunities 

1.1 Students 
enrolled and 
managed as 
per enrolment 
plan 
 

Number of students 
enrolled in different 
programme types 

10335 8171 COVID 19 had a negative impact 
on enrolment, targets could not be 
met. 

*NCV 
634 631 The target was not met but there 

was an improvement compared to 
previous years. 

*Report 191 
8952 7267 Targets were not met due to 

Covid 19, only one semester and 
two trimesters registered.  

*PLP 
60 63 The target was surpassed by   

 

*Occupational 
qualifications 

399 159 COVID 19 had a negative impact 
on enrolment, targets could not be 
met. 

*Trades (COS) 
60 51 The target was not met but there 

was an improvement compared to 
previous years. 

*Higher Certificates 
80 0 Targets were not met due to 

Covid 19, only one semester and 
two trimesters registered.  

*Shorter skills 
programmes 
(accredited and 
non-accredited) 

150 141 Professional driving number was 
72 
69 learners were trained on 
customer service. 
The variance of 9 was caused by 
unavailability of NARYSEC 
funded learners for professional 
driving 

1.2 College student 
accommodatio
n is optimally 
utilized 

Occupation rate (%) 
per enrolment cycle 

100 26 The College had to adjust the 
number of occupancies in the 
student accommodation as per 
covid-19 regulations, which was 
indicating occupancy of 50%.  
 
Most of the students prefer private 
accommodation as compared to 
College accommodation, and the 
reason is that with private 
accommodation they can manage 
to rent for cheaper 
accommodation and pocket the 
rest of the allowance 

SO2 
Improved 
success and 
efficiency of 
TVET systems 

2.1 Apprentices in 
trade programmes 
qualify and pass 
trade test  

Number of artisans 
exiting COS or 
college 

0 0 The college did not have a target 
for 2020. Artisans will only   exit in 
2021.  

2.2 Students 
complete 
qualifications and 
programmes and 
exit the college 

Number of students 
at exit levels exiting 
college 
programmes 

1444 425 Due to COVID 19, the target could 
not be reached not all cycles 
registered. 

*Number of 
students exiting 
NCV L4 

64 0 The NCV results were still 
outstanding and an actual 
performance could not be 
calculated. 
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STRATEGIC 

OUTCOME 

 
 

OUTPUTS  OUTPUT 

PERFORMANCE 

INDICATORS  

TVET 

COLLEGE 

2020 

PLANNED 

TARGET 

TVET 

COLLEGE 2020 

ACHIEVEMENT 
EXPLANATORY REMARKS 

2.3 NCV students 
complete 
qualification within 3 
years 

Number of 
students exiting 
N6 

1380 425 Due to COVID 19, the target 
could not be reached not all 
cycles registered. 

2.4 PLP students 
are retained 

Retention rate (%) 
in PLP 

100 86 COVID 19 had a very negative 
impact on attendance and as a 
result the target could not be 
reached. The delay in payment of 
allowances,  resulted in some 
students dropping out. 

2.5 PLP students’ 
progress into initial 
programmes of 
choice 

Progression rate 
(%) of PLP students 

100 76 The target of 100% was not 
achieved as some students 
dropped out and 10% of the 
remaining could not pass. COVID 
19 had a negative impact on 
attendance, teaching and 
learning.  

SO3 
Improved 
quality of TVET 
college 
provision 

3.1 College councils 
are constituted and 
comply with 
standards 

% compliance with 
governance 
standards 

100 86 Target of 100% was not achieved 
as the College Statute which was 
due for review in 2019 was still not 
yet reviewed.  

3.2 Examinations 
are conducted with 
minimum irregularity 
reported 

% compliance with 
examinations 
standards and 
policy 

100 100 Strict adherence to the 
Instructions for the Conduct and 
Administration of Examinations in 
TVET Programmes - National 
Certificate (Vocational) and 
Report 190/1 - Revised October 
2019 and has been implemented 
in 2020. 

3.3 More students 
meet the 
requirements for 
writing examinations 

% of registered 
students (based on 
subject enrolment) 
qualifying for 
examinations  

72 90  Strict Implementation of Memo 
46 of 2015 Admission 
Requirements for National 
Examinations and adherence to 
Memorandum TE01 of 2020 
Adherence Policy on the Late 
Arrival into the Examination 
Venue. 

3.4 TVET college 
lecturers are placed 
in industry for 
specified periods to 
gain relevant 
experience 

% of TVET college 
lecturers placed in 
industry 

10 2 The uncertainty around COVID 19 
did not make it any easier. Target 
could not be achieved as a result 
of COVID-19 restrictions and that  
companies did not want to 
accommodate lecturers for 
placement as a measure to curb 
what they referred to as possible 
spread of COVID 19. 

3.5 Partnerships 
signed for improving 
teaching and 
learning and 
relevance of 
programmes 

Number of 
partnership 
agreements (locally 
and internationally) 
for purposes of 
exchanging and/or 
placing college 
students and /or 
lecturers 

11 11 Lack of funding for OIHD could 
not be sourced 

SO4 4.1 More students 
are enrolled in 

Number of students 
enrolled in 

25 0 Academicthe six learners 
achieved were based on the 
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STRATEGIC 

OUTCOME 

 
 

OUTPUTS  OUTPUT 

PERFORMANCE 

INDICATORS  

TVET 

COLLEGE 

2020 

PLANNED 

TARGET 

TVET 

COLLEGE 2020 

ACHIEVEMENT 
EXPLANATORY REMARKS 

Improved 
responsiveness 
of TVET 
colleges to the 
world of work 

identified 
programme offerings 
relating to OIHD and 
priority skills 

programmes 
relating to OIHD 
and priority skills 

partnership with Enactus. The 
disruption of the Acedmic year 
hampered the success of 
Entrepreneurship support. 

4.2 
Entrepreneurship 
hubs are established 
and supported 

Number of students 
engaged in 
entrepreneurship 
programmes and 
initiatives 

50 6 The target could not be met due to 
Covid 19 pandemic 

4.3 Students are 
placed for WBPL at 
exit levels 

Number of students 
placed for WBPL at 
exit levels 

273 225 Lack of funding for placement of 
NCV learners, hence the target 
was not met 

*Number of 
students placed for 
WBPL at NCV L4 

10 4 The planned target was not met 
due to Covid 19 pandemic’s 
disruption of the Academic year 

*Number of 
students placed for 
WBPL at N6 

263 221 Lack of funding for OIHD could 
not be sourced 

 

10.2 STRATEGY TO DEAL WITH UNDERPERFORMANCE     

Provide narrative on dealing with underperformance in terms of the strategic outcomes and outputs and annual 

performance targets.  Explain how was monitored and interventions adopted to correct or rectify. 

 

10.2.1 Academic 

Strategies to improve poor enrolments numbers 

 

Challenge Strategy 

Lecturers at risk Lectures with comorbidities were identified and provision was made for them to work 

from home. 

Social distancing in classrooms Number of students in classrooms were reduced in order to comply with COVID 19 

regulations. 

Not all classes could fit in the time-

table 

The time-table was extended to Saturdays to ensure completion of the syllabi. 

Tools of trade to accommodate 

remote teaching. 

Lecturers were provided with data monthly to ensure the smooth running of remote 

learning. 

The absence of LMS The College started the implementation of Moodle as an LMS platform. Lectures 

submitted content. 

Identification of subjects at risk Extra classes were conducted to assist in improving poor performing subjects 

Planning meeting of a college 

curriculum committee  

Collective planning. 

Monitoring and implementation of college Assessment plan which includes pre and 

post moderations, Files.  Submission of marks 

Student class attendance Follow up on continuous absenteeism  
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Consistency in setting and 

moderation of common 

assessments on campuses   

 

Collective planning of all common subjects, offered across campuses the 

end of the previous year. 

Collective teaching to assist with building expertise in various techniques applied by 

various lecturers 

Subject meetings schedules at all 

campuses for all common subjects.  

Minutes must be sent by Seniors to Campus manager to report on monthly basis.  

Assessments be  centrally located  Common standards easy to monitor at any given time to check the standard of 

assessments across campuses  

Class visits  Render lecturer support  

Planning meeting of a college 

curriculum committee  

 

Collective planning. 

Monitoring and implementation of college Assessment plan which includes pre and 

post moderations, Files.  

 

10.2.2 Governance  

College Statute will be reviewed in the first quarter once every three years.  

 

10.2.3 Registrar 

The College had to adjust the number of occupancies in the student accommodation as per covid-19 regulations, 

which was indicating occupancy of 50%. Should the situation relating to the Covid-19 pandemic improve 

occupancy will increase. 

 

Most of the students prefer private accommodation as compared to College accommodation, and the reason is 

that with private accommodation they can manage to rent for cheaper accommodation and pocket the rest of the 

allowance.  College to review the hostel fees in order to make it more affordable for our students. 

 

10.2.4 Governance (PBU) 

On Entrepreneurship Support: more partnerships should be sourced with organisations like Enactus, NYDA and 

other to assist in the Entrepreneurship programmes 

On OIHD- there should vigorous efforts done to source funding for such programmes. Campuses should also 

make a priority of new programmes that are classified as OIHD programmes to boost the enrolments targeted. 

On placement (NCV and Report 191)- The College should also take its fair share of responsibility, by funding a 

certain portion of learners in order to close the gaps, where there is no funding available. 
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 10.2.5 Corporate 

 

TVET lecturers placed in workplaces for specified purpose (n) 

 

College Interventions Resource Considerations Spatial Reference Links to other 
Plans  

Partner with PBU to 
centralise placement.  
Have MoU’s with identified 
Industry.  
Partnership with relevant 
SETA’s.  
Provision of COVID 19 
protective equipment. 
 

Financial Resources. 
Compensate placement.  
Human Resources – 
coordinate placement. 
Protective Clothing – safety 
and COVID 19. 
Transportation. 
Computer. 
Internet connection.  
Stationery. 

Kroonstad Campus. 
Sasolburg Campus. 
Mphohadi Campus. 
 

Skills Development 
Plan. 
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General Information

Country of incorporation and domicile South Africa

Nature of business and principal activities Tertiary Education
To provide continuing education and training to registered students
for all learning and training programs leading to qualifications or part
qualifications at levels 1 to 4 of the National Qualifications Framework.

Council members Dr SJ Mohapi - Chairperson of Council

Dr CM Mabaso - Deputy Chairperson of Council

Mr PM Hlahane - Council Member

Ms N Jantjies - Council Member: Donors

Ms N Kumalo - Council Member and Chairperson of the
Conditions of Employment Committee

Mr TS Letho - Principal and Chairperson: Academic Board

Mr R Lethule - Academic board Member

Ms S Magubane - Ministerial appointee and Chairperson:
Planning Committee

Ms A Maloka  - SRC member

Mr PD Manoko - Council Member  and Chairperson of the
Audit/Risk Committee

Dr GJ Maseko - Ministerial appointee

Ms LJ Mbambo - Academic Staff Representative

Mr MP Moremi - Ministerial appointee and Chairperson:
Finance Committee

Mr MD Ntaje  - Representative of Non-teaching staff

Ms C Nyama - SRC member

Mr TC Sithole - Council Member

Principal Mr TS Letho

Deputy Principal: Finance Ms A le Roux

Registered office Corner Fichardt and Bell Street

Sasolburg

1947

Business address Corner Fichardt and Bell Street

Sasolburg

1947

Postal address Private Bag X 2009

Sasolburg

1947

Controlling entity Department of Higher Education and Training

Bankers ABSA Bank Limited

Auditors Auditor-General of South Africa

Level of assurance These annual financial statements have been audited in compliance
with the applicable requirements of the Continuing
Education and Training Act 16 of 2006, as amended.

Preparer The annual financial statements were independently compiled by:

Rakoma & Associates Inc CA(SA)
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Flavius Mareka TVET College
(Registration number 440000300)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020

Council's Responsibilities and Approval

The Council is required by the Continuing Education and Training Act No. 16 of 2006, as amended, to maintain adequate
accounting records and is responsible for the content and integrity of the financial statements and related financial
information included in this report. It is the responsibility of Council to ensure that the financial statements fairly present the
state of affairs of the College as at the end of the financial year and the results of its operations and cash flows for the year
then ended, in conformity with GRAP. The Auditor-General was engaged to express an independent opinion on the financial
statements and was given unrestricted access to all financial records, related data and relevant parties.

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting
Practice (GRAP) including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting Standards Board.

The annual financial statements are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by
reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates.

The Council acknowledges that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established by the
College and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the Council to meet
these responsibilities, the Council sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error in a cost effective
manner. The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective
accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls are
monitored throughout the College and all employees are required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the
College’s business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach. The focus of risk
management in the College is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the
College. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the College endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate
infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined procedures and
constraints.

The Council accepts its responsibility to ensure that the College is managed in a responsible manner, considering the
interest of all stakeholders, including the DHET, unions, employees, students, local communities and creditors.
Responsible management entails, inter alia, compliance with applicable statutory and regulatory requirements, including
risk management.

The Council is of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the system of internal
control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the annual financial
statements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement.

The Council has reviewed the College’s cash flow forecast for the year to 31 December 2021 and, in the light of this review
and the current financial position, they are satisfied that the College has or has access to adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future.

The College is dependent on the DHET for continued funding of operations in line with the annual DHET programme
funding allocation. The financial statements are prepared on the basis that the College is a going concern and that the
DHET has neither the intention nor the need to liquidate or curtail materially the scale of the College's operations. 

The Auditor-General is responsible for independently auditing and reporting on the College's financial statements and his
report is presented with these financial statements.

The annual financial statements set out on pages 13 to 59, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were
approved by Council on 31 March 2021 and were signed on its behalf by:

Dr SJ Mohapi - Chairperson of Council
31 March 2021
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Audit Committee Report

We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 31 December 2020.

Audit committee members and attendance

The audit committee consists of the members listed hereunder and met eight times during the year.

Name of member Number of Quarterly
meetings attended

Number of Special
meetings attended

R Mbhalati (Chairperson - resigned) 2 2
PD Manoko (Chairperson) 4 2
TS Letho (Principal) 4 4
A le Roux (DP: Finance) 4 4
C Mbileni-Morema 2 0
MD Mokhampanyane (ASD M & E) 4 4
M Moremi 4 4
N Jantjies 0 0
TC Sithole 1 0

Audit committee responsibility

The audit committee reports that it has complied with its responsibilities arising from the principles of  section 38(10)(1) of
the PFMA and Treasury Regulation 3.1. The audit committee also reports that it has adopted appropriate formal terms of
reference as its audit committee charter, has regulated its affairs in compliance with this charter and has discharged all its
responsibilities as contained therein.

The effectiveness of internal control

The system of internal controls applied by the College over financial and risk management is effective, efficient and
transparent. Internal Audit provides the audit committee and management with assurance that the internal controls are
appropriate and effective. This is achieved by means of the risk management process, as well as the identification of
corrective actions and suggested enhancements to the controls and processes. From the various reports of the Internal
Auditors, the Audit Report on the annual financial statements, and the management report of the auditors, it was noted that
no matters were reported that indicate material deficiencies in the system of internal control. Accordingly, we can report that
the system of internal control over financial reporting for the period under review was efficient and effective.

The audit committee is satisfied with the content and quality of monthly and quarterly reports prepared and issued by the
Council of the College during the year under review.

Evaluation of annual financial statements

The audit committee has not:
Ÿ reviewed and discussed the unaudited annual financial statements, with the external auditor;
Ÿ reviewed the auditor's management report and management’s response thereto;
Ÿ reviewed changes in accounting policies and practices;
Ÿ reviewed the entities compliance with legal and regulatory provisions and
Ÿ reviewed significant adjustments resulting from the audit.

External auditor

The audit committee has not met with the auditor to ensure that there are no unresolved issues.

Chairperson of the Audit Committee
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4. Heading 4

Auditor-General of South Africa
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Flavius Mareka TVET College
(Registration number 440000300)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020

Council's Report

The council submit their report for the year ended 31 December 2020.

1. Domicile, legal form and jurisdiction

The College is a Public Technical and Vocational Education and Training College, constituted in terms of the Continuing
Education and Training Act No. 16 of 2006, as amended, and operates within the Republic of South Africa.

2. Review of activities

Main business and operations

The operating results and state of affairs of the College are fully set out in the attached annual financial statements and do
not in our opinion require any further comment.

Net surplus of the College was R 6,249,676 (2019: surplus R 24,808,652).

3. Going concern

We draw attention to the fact that at 31 December 2020, the college had an accumulated surplus of R 345,322,925 (2019:
R 339,073,249).

The College incurred a net surplus of R 6,249,676 (2019: surplus R 24,808,652). Management still believes that the College
will be able to successfully continue its operations as funding is received from the Department of Higher Education and
Training. Management is of the opinion that the TVET sector is a priority focus area for the Department to attain its strategic
objectives to provide quality technical and vocational education and training services and increase academic achievement
and success of students and therefore believes that the Department of Higher Education and Training will continue to fund
the College.

The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This
basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of
liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.

4. Subsequent events

The Council is not aware of any significant events that occurred subsequent to year end. 

5. Accounting policies

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting
Practice (GRAP) and in the manner prescribed by the Minister of Higher Education and Training in terms of the Continuing
Education and Training Act No. 16 of 2006, as amended.
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Flavius Mareka TVET College
(Registration number 440000300)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020

Council's Report

6. Council

The council of the college during the year and to the date of this report are as follows:

Name Nationality Designation
Dr SJ Mohapi - Chairperson of Council South African Independent Council member

(Chairperson)
Dr CM Mabaso - Deputy Chairperson of Council South African Independent Council member
Mr PM Hlahane - Council Member South African Independent Council member
Ms N Jantjies - Council Member: Donors South African Independent Council member
Ms N Kumalo - Council Member and Chairperson of
the Conditions of Employment Committee

South African Independent Council member

Mr TS Letho - Principal and Chairperson: Academic
Board

South African Non-independent Council member

Mr R Lethule - Academic board Member South African Non-independent Council member
Ms S Magubane - Ministerial appointee and
Chairperson:  Planning Committee

South African Independent Council member

Ms A Maloka  - SRC member South African SRC Member
Mr PD Manoko - Council Member  and Chairperson
of the Audit/Risk Committee

South African Independent Council member

Dr GJ Maseko - Ministerial appointee South African Independent Council member
Ms LJ Mbambo - Academic Staff Representative South African Non-independent Council member
Mr MP Moremi - Ministerial appointee and
Chairperson: Finance Committee

South African Independent Council member

Mr MD Ntaje  - Representative of Non-teaching staff South African Non-independent Council member
Ms C Nyama - SRC member South African SRC Member
Mr TC Sithole - Council Member South African Independent Council member

7. Auditors

Auditor-General of South Africa will continue to be auditors of the College.
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Flavius Mareka TVET College
(Registration number 440000300)
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Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2020
2020 2019

Restated*
Note(s) R R

Assets

Current Assets
Inventories 3 2,824,817 2,642,448
Receivables from exchange transactions 4 6,663,434 8,050,556
Receivables from non-exchange transactions 5 507,552 263,899
Statutory receivables 6 13,274,202 19,680,042
Prepayments 7 17,135 1,264,810
Investments 8 877,013 824,590
Cash and cash equivalents 9 53,704,793 45,705,469

77,868,946 78,431,814

Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 10 291,077,326 287,004,074
Intangible assets 11 411,074 464,405

291,488,400 287,468,479

Total Assets 369,357,346 365,900,293

Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Finance lease obligation 12 584,990 -
Payables from exchange transactions 13 11,165,392 13,154,937
Taxes and transfers payable (non-exchange) 14 5,016,125 9,189,003
Unspent conditional grants and receipts 15 6,621,668 4,483,104

23,388,175 26,827,044

Non-Current Liabilities
Finance lease obligation 12 646,246 -

Total Liabilities 24,034,421 26,827,044

Net Assets 345,322,925 339,073,249

Accumulated surplus 345,322,925 339,073,249
Total Net Assets 345,322,925 339,073,249

* See Note  40 & 35
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Flavius Mareka TVET College
(Registration number 440000300)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020

Statement of Financial Performance
2020 2019

Restated*
Note(s) R R

Revenue

Revenue from exchange transactions
Tuition and related fees 17 28,565,994 34,834,549
Student fees earned 888,520 1,318,088
Recoveries 291,640 443,964
Insurance income 4,524 163,344
Sundry income 18 2,043,937 3,388,787
Interest received 19 808,133 627,142

Total revenue from exchange transactions 32,602,748 40,775,874

Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Transfer revenue
Government grants and subsidies 20 67,752,075 74,734,678
Service received in kind 22 56,374,459 54,251,020

Total revenue from non-exchange transactions 124,126,534 128,985,698

Total revenue 21 156,729,282 169,761,572

Expenditure
Personnel expenses and DHET management fee 22 (92,631,948) (90,341,180)
Administration expenses 23 (15,410,703) (13,701,190)
External auditors remuneration (4,061,417) (2,706,195)
Depreciation and amortisation (11,249,204) (9,949,383)
Finance costs 24 (144,115) -
Debt impairment provision (3,129,965) (3,724,581)
Consulting and internal audit fees (308,595) (316,410)
Repairs and maintenance 25 (5,825,911) (1,575,239)
Education services 26 (15,549,422) (20,606,100)
General expenses 27 (1,903,206) (1,822,969)

Total expenditure (150,214,486) (144,743,247)

Operating surplus 6,514,796 25,018,325
Loss on disposal of assets (270,058) (209,673)
Gains on inventory revaluation 4,938 -

(265,120) (209,673)

Surplus for the year 6,249,676 24,808,652

* See Note  40 & 35
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets
Accumulated

surplus
Total net
assets

R R

Opening balance as previously reported 314,139,302 314,139,302
Prior year adjustments:
Prior period errors relating to 2018 (Note 35) 125,295 125,295

Balance at 01 January 2019 as restated 314,264,597 314,264,597
Surplus for the year as previously reported 25,295,091 25,295,091
Prior year adjustments:
Prior period errors (Note 35) (486,439) (486,439)

Total changes 24,808,652 24,808,652

Restated balance at 01 January 2020 339,073,249 339,073,249
Surplus for the year 6,249,676 6,249,676

Total changes 6,249,676 6,249,676

Balance at 31 December 2020 345,322,925 345,322,925

* See Note  40 & 35
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(Registration number 440000300)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020

Cash Flow Statement
2020 2019

Restated*
Note(s) R R

Cash flows from operating activities

Receipts

Student and tuition fees earned 25,961,722 30,345,770
Grants 78,553,027 50,542,550
Interest income 889,018 627,142
Other receipts - 5,777,532

105,403,767 87,292,994

Payments

Employee costs (35,844,329) (35,086,725)
Suppliers (47,055,629) (43,214,689)

(82,899,958) (78,301,414)

Net cash flows from operating activities 28 22,503,809 8,991,580

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 10 (13,837,023) (8,201,572)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 10 58,616 149,332
Acquisition of investments (52,423) (58,637)

Net cash flows used in investing activities (13,830,830) (8,110,877)

Cash flows from financing activities

Finance lease payments (673,655) -

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 7,999,324 880,703
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 45,705,469 44,824,766

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 9 53,704,793 45,705,469

* See Note  40 & 35
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Flavius Mareka TVET College
(Registration number 440000300)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020

Unaudited Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts
Budget on Accrual Basis

Approved
budget

Adjustments Final Budget Actual amounts
on comparable

basis

Difference
between final
budget and

actual

Difference
between

final budget
and actual

Reference

R R R R R %

Statement of Financial Performance

Revenue

Revenue from exchange
transactions
Rendering of services 29,082,081 - 29,082,081 28,565,994 (516,087) -2%

Student fees earned 1,230,000 - 1,230,000 888,520 (341,480)-28% 37.1
Recoveries - - - 291,640 291,640 100% 37.2
Insurance income - - - 4,524 4,524 100% 37.3
Sundry income 2,065,582 - 2,065,582 2,043,937 (21,645)-1%

Interest received - investment 2,400,000 - 2,400,000 808,133 (1,591,867)-66% 37.4

Total revenue from exchange
transactions

34,777,663 - 34,777,663 32,602,748

Revenue from non-exchange
transactions

Transfer revenue
Government grants & subsidies 42,254,884 1,776,474 44,031,358 67,752,075 23,720,717 54% 37.5
Service received in kind 56,902,055 3,619,946 60,522,001 56,374,459 (4,147,542)-7%

Total revenue from non-
exchange transactions

99,156,939 5,396,420 104,553,359 124,126,534

Total revenue 133,934,602 5,396,420 139,331,022 156,729,282                                       

Expenditure
Personnel expenses and DHET
management fee

(92,240,954) - (92,240,954) (92,631,948) (390,994)0%

Administration expenses (17,877,000) - (17,877,000) (15,410,703) 2,466,297 14% 37.6
External auditors remuneration (3,300,000) - (3,300,000) (4,061,417) (761,417)-23% 37.7
Depreciation and amortisation - - - (11,249,204) (11,249,204)100% 37.8
Finance costs - - - (144,115) (144,115)100% 37.9
Debt Impairment (2,915,655) - (2,915,655) (3,129,965) (214,310)-11% 37.2
Consulting and internal audit
fees

- - - (308,595) (308,595)100% 37.10

Repairs and maintenance (44,314,224) - (44,314,224) (5,825,911) 38,488,313 87% 37.11
Education services (34,336,127) - (34,336,127) (15,549,422) 18,786,705 54% 37.12
Loss on disposal of assets - - - (270,058) (270,058)100% 37.13
General Expenses (1,366,000) - (1,366,000) (1,903,206) (537,206)-39% 37.14

Total expenditure (196,349,960) - (196,349,960) (150,484,544)

Operating surplus (62,415,358) 5,396,420 (57,018,938) 6,244,738 63,263,676
Gains on inventory revaluation - - - 4,938 4,938 100%

Actual Amount on
Comparable Basis as
Presented in the Budget and
Actual Comparative
Statement

(62,415,358) 5,396,420 (57,018,938) 6,249,676

The College deems a difference of 10% to be a material difference. Please refer to note 37 for reasons for material
differences. 
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Flavius Mareka TVET College
(Registration number 440000300)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020

Accounting Policies

1. Presentation of Annual Financial Statements

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised
Accounting Practice (GRAP), and in the manner prescribed by the Minister of Higher Education and Training in terms of the
Further Education and Training Act 16 of 2006 as amended.

These annual financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with
historical cost convention as the basis of measurement, unless specified otherwise. In the absence of an issued and
effective Standard of GRAP, accounting policies for material transactions, events or conditions were developed in
accordance with paragraphs 8, 10 and 11 of GRAP 3 as read with Directive 5.

Assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses were not offset, except where offsetting is either required or permitted by a
Standard of GRAP. 

These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period, except for the changes set out in note 40 Changes in
accounting policy.

1.1 Presentation currency

These annual financial statements are presented in South African Rand, which is the functional currency of the College.

1.2 Going concern assumption

These annual financial statements have been prepared based on the expectation that the College will continue to operate
as a going concern for at least the next 12 months.

1.3 Comparison of budget and actual amounts

The College does not fall within the scope of GRAP 24 Presentation of Budget Information in Financial Statements, as its
budgets are not made publicly available as per GRAP 24. The College has decided to comply with GRAP 24 on a voluntary
basis to add value to the users of the Financial Statements.

The approved budget is the budget that is approved by the Council of the College, before the commencement of the
financial year. The final budget is the approved budget, updated with all the budget amendments approved by the Council
of the College during the financial year.

The financial statements and the budget are prepared on a comparable basis and the budget consists of a Statement of
Financial Performance budget.  Therefore, the approved budget is presented on the same accounting basis, with the same
classification structure, for the same period and for the same entities and activities as is reported on in the annual financial
statements.

The comparison of budget and actual amounts are done through the inclusion of a separate additional statement of
comparison of budget and actual amounts in the annual financial statements.

The approved budget is for the period 01 January 2020 to 31 December 2020.

1.4 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty

The use of judgement, estimates and assumptions is inherent to the process of preparing annual financial statements.
These judgements, estimates and assumptions affect the amounts presented in the annual financial statements.
Uncertainties about these estimates and assumptions could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the
carrying amount of the relevant asset or liability in future periods.

Judgements:

In the process of applying these accounting policies, management has made the following judgements that may have a
significant effect on the amount recognized in the financial statements:
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Accounting Policies

1.4 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Campuses used and controlled, but not owned by the College

Certain campuses are used by the College and are not registered in the name of the College. The lack of legal ownership
could affect whether or not the College has control over the campus. Where, inter alia, beneficial control can be illustrated,
the campus in question is recognized, measured and included in the financial statements as property, plant and equipment
in terms the definition of an asset as per the Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements and
the definition of Property, Plant and Equipment in GRAP 17 or Investment Property in GRAP 16.

Programme funding

In terms of the CET Act and the Funding Norms for TVET Colleges, the Colleges are funded (Programme Funding) based
on their Full Time Equivalent (FTE) student numbers.  Therefore, in terms of the CET Act and the Funding Norms, a College
receives Programme Funding to enrol and train a certain number of students for the year and that Programme Funding
accrues to the College in terms of the CET Act and the Funding Norms and the accrual is separate and independent from
how the funds are distributed to the College.  The full amount of allocated Programme Funding therefore has to be paid to
the College by DHET, irrespective of how it is paid.  DHET settles its liability for Programme Funding towards the College in
part by paying the employment cost of the College employees employed by DHET, via Persal. The remaining liability
towards the College is settled in cash.

The Funding norms that is currently applicable to TVET Colleges was Gazetted on 15 May 2015 and paragraph 117
contains provisions which may cause conditions as defined in GRAP 23 to exist under certain circumstances.  These
conditions would be applicable to the portion of the Programme Funding which is withheld to pay for employee cost of
Persal employees deployed at the College.  However, DHET has indicated that the intention of the Funding Norms is not to
impose conditions which may be introduced by paragraph 117 and that the intention is that a College’s Programme Funding
accrues to it in total.  Therefore, any difference between the amount withheld for paying Persal salaries and the amount that
is eventually used to pay for Persal salaries, is automatically payable to Colleges.  DHET has aligned its systems to
facilitate the payment of these amounts to Colleges. 

The substance over form nature of the Programme Funding for a College is therefore that it accrues to the College, in full
and without any conditions, in the financial year of the College during which the enrolment and training of students occur.
The date on which it accrues is 1 January of the relevant year, or the date on which the final grant amount is communicated
to the College, whichever is later.  The full Programme Funding allocation to the College is therefore recognised as revenue
in the College's financial year.
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Accounting Policies

1.4 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

DHET management fee

The College's staff consists of two groups:
i)   Employees and management staff appointed on Persal
ii)  Employees appointed on the College payroll

The management and other staff who are stationed at a College (College’s staff) and are paid through Persal are employed
by DHET on DHET’s Persal payroll.  Therefore in terms of labour legislation they are DHET employees and not College
employees.  However, these employees are stationed permanently and exclusively at the College and are also subject to
the governance and management oversight of the Council of the College and the intention is for the College to operate with
relative autonomy.  The employees are therefore substantively under the operational control of the College, with DHET
performing and supporting certain HR related functions, e.g. administering the payroll and appointment, performance
management, termination and disciplinary processes. 

In terms of the CET Act and the Funding Norms for TVET Colleges, the Colleges are funded (Programme Funding) based
on their Full Time Equivalent (FTE) student numbers.  Therefore, in terms of the CET Act and the Funding Norms, a College
receives Programme Funding to enrol and train a certain number of students for the year and that Programme Funding
accrues to the College in terms of the CET Act and the Funding Norms and the accrual is separate and independent from
how the funds are distributed to the College. The full amount of allocated Programme Funding therefore has to be paid to
the College by DHET, irrespective of how it is paid. DHET settles its liability for Programme Funding towards the College in
part by paying the employment cost of the College employees employed by DHET, via Persal.  The remaining liability
towards the College is settled in cash. 

DHET employs the College’s management and other staff for it, performs certain HR related functions for the College and
uses the College’s funds to pay the salaries of the College staff in DHET’s employment.

There is therefore a College expense (outflow of College economic resources) which has to be accounted for by a College
and the questions that remain are how that expense should be classified and measured.

With respect to the classification, the nature of the expense is clearly related to employee cost, but is not classified as
employee cost, because the College is not the employer in terms of labour and related legislation. The expense is therefore
classified as a DHET management fee expense in the hands of a College.  On the face of the Statement of Financial
Performance, it is aggregated with the College’s Employee cost expense and it is disclosed separately in the notes.

With respect to the measurement of the expense, DHET settles the liability for Programme Funding towards the College, by
assuming an employee cost liability towards the College’s employees employed by DHET and paid via Persal.  The cost or
value of the expense for the College is therefore the same as the amount by which the liability that DHET owes to the
College decreases as a result of DHET assuming the employee cost liability towards the College employees.  This is
inclusive of all short and long term employee benefits, e.g. leave and bonus accruals, capped leave and long service
awards.

Estimates

Estimates are informed by historical experience, information currently available to management, assumptions, and other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. These estimates are reviewed on a regular basis.
Changes in estimates that are not due to errors are processed in the period of the review and applied prospectively.

In the process of applying the College’s accounting policies the following estimates, were made:

Trade and other receivables

The College assesses its trade and other receivables for impairment at the end of each reporting period. In determining
whether an impairment loss should be recorded in surplus or deficit, the College makes judgements as to whether there is
observable data indicating a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a financial asset.
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1.4 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Non-financial asset impairment

In testing for, and determining the value-in-use of non-financial assets, management is required to rely on the use of
estimates about the asset’s ability to continue to generate cash flows (in the case of cash-generating assets). For non-
cash-generating assets, estimates are made regarding the depreciated replacement cost, restoration cost, or service units
of the asset, depending on the nature of the impairment and the availability of information.

Allowance of doubtful debts

On debtors an impairment loss is recognised in surplus and deficit when there is objective evidence that it is impaired. The
impairment is measured as the difference between the debtors carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate, computed at initial recognition.

Useful lives of assets, depreciation and amortisation

The College’s management determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation charges for these assets. These
estimates are based on industry norms and then adjusted to be College specific. Management will increase the
depreciation charge where useful lives are less than previously estimated useful lives and vice versa.

Depreciation and amortization recognised on property, plant and equipment are determined with reference to the useful
lives and residual values of the underlying items. The useful lives and residual values of assets are based on management
estimation of the asset’s condition, expected condition at the end of the period of use, its current use, expected future use
and the College’s expectations about the availability of finance to replace the asset at the end of its useful life. In evaluating
how the condition and use of the assets informs the useful life and residual value management considers the impact of
technology and minimum service requirements of the assets.

1.5 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets (including infrastructure assets) that are held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used
during more than one period.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:
Ÿ it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the College;

and
Ÿ the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost. These costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or
construct an item of property, plant and equipment and costs incurred subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring the asset to
the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Trade
discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost.

Where an asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair value as at date of acquisition.

Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or monetary assets, or a
combination of monetary and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially measured at fair value (the cost). If the
acquired item's fair value was not determinable, it's deemed cost is the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up.

Deemed cost was determined using depreciated replacement cost for items of property, plant and equipment.

The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located is also
included in the cost of property, plant and equipment, where the College is obligated to incur such expenditure, and where
the obligation arises as a result of acquiring the asset or using it for purposes other than the production of inventories.

Recognition of costs in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment ceases when the item is in the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
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1.5 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight line basis over their expected useful lives to their estimated
residual value.

The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:

Item Depreciation method Average useful life

Land Not applicable   Indefinite
Buildings and fixed structures Straight line 10 - 50 years
Plant and machinery Straight line   5 - 15 years
Furniture and fixtures Straight line   5 - 20 years
Motor vehicles Straight line   5 - 15 years
IT equipment Straight line   3 - 12 years
College Infrastructure Straight line   5 - 50 years
Sporting facilities Straight line 15 - 25 years
Emergency Equipment Straight line   7 - 15 years

The residual value, and the useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at the end of each reporting
date. If the expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate.

Reviewing the useful life of an asset on an annual basis does not require the College to amend the previous estimate
unless expectations differ from the previous estimate.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is
depreciated separately.

The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in surplus or deficit unless it is included in the carrying amount of
another asset.

Items of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there are no further
economic benefits or service potential expected from the use of the asset.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in surplus or deficit
when the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item.

When the College initially recognises an asset using the Standards of GRAP, it measures such assets using the cost at the
date of acquisition (acquisition cost). When the acquisition cost of an asset is not available on the adoption of the
Standards of GRAP, acquisition cost is measured using a surrogate value (deemed cost) at the date a College adopts the
Standards of GRAP (measurement date). Deemed cost is determined as the fair value of an asset at the measurement
date.

1.6 Intangible assets

An asset is identifiable if it either:
Ÿ is separable, i.e. is capable of being separated or divided from the College and sold, transferred, licensed, rented

or exchanged, either individually or together with a related contract, identifiable assets or liability, regardless of
whether the College intends to do so; or

Ÿ arises from binding arrangements (including rights from contracts), regardless of whether those rights are
transferable or separable from the College or from other rights and obligations.

A binding arrangement describes an arrangement that confers similar rights and obligations on the parties to it as if it were
in the form of a contract.

An intangible asset is recognised when:
Ÿ it is probable that the expected future economic benefits or service potential that are attributable to the asset will

flow to the College; and
Ÿ the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.
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1.6 Intangible assets (continued)

The College assesses the probability of expected future economic benefits or service potential using reasonable and
supportable assumptions that represent management’s best estimate of the set of economic conditions that will exist over
the useful life of the asset.

Where an intangible asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its initial cost at the date of acquisition is
measured at its fair value as at that date.

Expenditure on research (or on the research phase of an internal project) is recognised as an expense when it is incurred.

Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.

An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on all relevant factors, there is no
foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is expected to generate net cash inflows or service potential.
Amortisation is not provided for these intangible assets, but they are tested for impairment annually and whenever there is
an indication that the asset may be impaired. For all other intangible assets amortisation is provided on a straight line basis
over their useful life.

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date.

Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset with a finite useful life after it was classified as indefinite is an indicator
that the asset may be impaired. As a result the asset is tested for impairment and the remaining carrying amount is
amortised over its useful life.

Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight line basis, to their residual values as follows:

Computer software 10 years

1.7 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or a residual
interest of another entity.

The amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is
measured at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective
interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, and minus any reduction (directly or
through the use of an allowance account) for impairment or uncollectibility.

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to
discharge an obligation.

Derecognition is the removal of a previously recognised financial asset or financial liability from the College’s statement of
financial position.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable willing parties
in an arm’s length transaction.

A financial asset is:
Ÿ cash;
Ÿ a residual interest of another entity; or
Ÿ a contractual right to:

- receive cash or another financial asset from another entity; or
- exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially
favourable to the College.

A financial liability is any liability that is a contractual obligation to:
Ÿ deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or
Ÿ exchange financial assets or financial liabilities under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the College.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates.
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1.7 Financial instruments (continued)

Liquidity risk is the risk encountered by the College in the event of difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk.

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by
factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded
in the market.

A financial asset is past due when a counterparty has failed to make a payment when contractually due.

A residual interest is any contract that manifests an interest in the assets of a College after deducting all of its liabilities. A
residual interest includes contributions from owners, which may be shown as:

Ÿ equity instruments or similar forms of unitised capital;
Ÿ a formal designation of a transfer of resources (or a class of such transfers) by the parties to the transaction as

forming part of the College’s net assets, either before the contribution occurs or at the time of the contribution; or
Ÿ a formal agreement, in relation to the contribution, establishing or increasing an existing financial interest in the

net assets of the College.

Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset
or financial liability. An incremental cost is one that would not have been incurred if the College had not acquired, issued or
disposed of the financial instrument.

Financial instruments at amortised cost are non-derivative financial assets or non-derivative financial liabilities that have
fixed or determinable payments, excluding those instruments that:

Ÿ the College designates at fair value at initial recognition; or
Ÿ are held for trading.

Financial instruments at cost are investments in residual interests that do not have a quoted market price in an active
market, and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured.

Classification

The College has the following types of financial assets (classes and category) as reflected on the face of the statement of
financial position or in the notes thereto:

`

Class Category
Cash and cash equivalents Financial asset measured at amortised cost
Receivables from exchange transactions Financial asset measured at amortised cost
Receivables from non-exchange transactions Financial asset measured at amortised cost

The College has the following types of financial liabilities (classes and category) as reflected on the face of the statement of
financial position or in the notes thereto:

`

Class Category
Payables from exchange transactions Financial liability measured at amortised cost
Unspent conditional grants and receipts Financial liability measured at amortised cost
Payables from non-exchange transactions Financial liability measured at amortised cost

Initial recognition

The College recognises a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement of financial position when the College
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The College recognises financial assets using trade date accounting.
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1.7 Financial instruments (continued)

Initial measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

The College measures a financial asset and financial liability initially at its fair value plus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability.

The College measures a financial asset and financial liability initially at its fair value (if subsequently measured at fair
value).

Payables from exchange and non-exchange transactions

Payables from non-exchange transactions arise when the College has an obligation to return the grant funds and/or
receipts transferred to it by any third parties, through a non-exchange transaction, if conditions of the grant have not been
met (conditional grants). A non-exchange transaction is a transaction where an the College either receives value from
another entity without directly giving approximately equal value in exchange, or gives value to an entity without directly
receiving approximately equal value in exchange.

When funds are received as per stipulations of the grant contract, they give rise to a present obligation. A present obligation
arising from a non-exchange transaction, that meets the definition of a liability shall be recognised as a liability when, and
only when: it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying future economic benefits or service potential will be
required to settle the obligation; and reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Payables from exchange transactions are initially measured at fair value and are subsequently measured at cost. Where
fair value is the best estimate of the amount required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date and cost is the
cash outflow payable to the third upon unsuccessful discharge of grant conditions.

As the College satisfies a present obligation recognised as a liability in respect of an inflow of resources from a non-
exchange transaction recognised as an asset and/or expenditure, it shall reduce the carrying amount of the liability
recognised and recognise an amount of revenue equal to that reduction.

1.8 Leases

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. A lease
is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership.

When a lease includes both land and buildings elements, the College assesses the classification of each element
separately.

Finance leases - lessee

Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position at amounts equal to the fair
value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to
the lessor is included in the statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation.

The discount rate used in calculating the present value of the minimum lease payments is the interest rate implicit in the
lease.

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and reduction of the outstanding liability. The
finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of on the
remaining balance of the liability.

Any contingent rents are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is provided on the leased assets as follows:

Item Depreciation method Average useful life
Leased office equipment Straight line Lease term
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1.9 Tax

Income tax

The College is exempt from Income tax in terms of Section 10(1)(cN) of the Income Tax Act No. 58 of 1962.

1.10 Statutory receivables

Identification

Statutory receivables are receivables that arise from legislation, supporting regulations, or similar means, and require
settlement by another entity in cash or another financial asset.

Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognised in the statement of financial position.

The cost method is the method used to account for statutory receivables that requires such receivables to be measured at
their transaction amount, plus any accrued interest or other charges (where applicable) and, less any accumulated
impairment losses and any amounts derecognised.

Nominal interest rate is the interest rate and/or basis specified in legislation, supporting regulations or similar means.

The transaction amount (for purposes of this Standard) for a statutory receivable means the amount specified in, or
calculated, levied or charged in accordance with, legislation, supporting regulations, or similar means.

Recognition

The college recognises statutory receivables as follows:
Ÿ if the transaction is an exchange transaction, using the policy on Revenue from exchange transactions;
Ÿ if the transaction is a non-exchange transaction, using the policy on Revenue from non-exchange transactions

(Taxes and transfers); or
Ÿ if the transaction is not within the scope of the policies listed in the above or another Standard of GRAP, the

receivable is recognised when the definition of an asset is met and, when it is probable that the future economic
benefits or service potential associated with the asset will flow to the entity and the transaction amount can be
measured reliably.

Initial measurement

The college initially measures statutory receivables at their transaction amount.

Subsequent measurement

The college measures statutory receivables after initial recognition using the cost method. Under the cost method, the initial
measurement of the receivable is changed subsequent to initial recognition to reflect any:

Ÿ interest or other charges that may have accrued on the receivable (where applicable);
Ÿ impairment losses; and
Ÿ amounts derecognised.

Impairment losses

The college assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that a statutory receivable, or a group of
statutory receivables, may be impaired.
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1.10 Statutory receivables (continued)

Derecognition

The college derecognises a statutory receivable, or a part thereof, when:
Ÿ the rights to the cash flows from the receivable are settled, expire or are waived;
Ÿ the college transfers to another party substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the receivable; or
Ÿ the college, despite having retained some significant risks and rewards of ownership of the receivable, has

transferred control of the receivable to another party and the other party has the practical ability to sell the
receivable in its entirety to an unrelated third party, and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without
needing to impose additional restrictions on the transfer. In this case, the entity:
- derecognise the receivable; and
- recognise separately any rights and obligations created or retained in the transfer.

The carrying amounts of any statutory receivables transferred are allocated between the rights or obligations retained and
those transferred on the basis of their relative fair values at the transfer date. The entity considers whether any newly
created rights and obligations are within the scope of the Standard of GRAP on Financial Instruments or another Standard
of GRAP. Any difference between the consideration received and the amounts derecognised and, those amounts
recognised, are recognised in surplus or deficit in the period of the transfer.

1.11 Impairment of non-cash-generating assets

Cash-generating assets are assets used with the objective of generating a commercial return. An asset generates a
commercial return when it is deployed in a manner consistent with that adopted by a profit-oriented entity.

Non-cash-generating assets are assets other than cash-generating assets.

Impairment is a loss in the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset, over and above the systematic
recognition of the loss of the asset’s future economic benefits or service potential through depreciation (amortisation).

Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognised in the statement of financial position after deducting any
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses thereon.

A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets managed with the objective of generating a commercial
return that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets.

Costs of disposal are incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset, excluding finance costs and income
tax expense.

Depreciation (Amortisation) is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life.

Fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction between
knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of disposal.

Recoverable service amount is the higher of a non-cash-generating asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.

Useful life is either:
Ÿ the period of time over which an asset is expected to be used by the College; or
Ÿ the number of production or similar units expected to be obtained from the asset by the College.

Identification

The College assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that a non-cash-generating asset may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, the College estimates the recoverable service amount of the asset.
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1.11 Impairment of non-cash-generating assets (continued)

Value in use

Value in use of a non-cash-generating asset is the present value of the estimated future cash flows expected to be derived
from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life.

When estimating the value in use of an asset, the College estimates the future cash inflows and outflows to be derived from
continuing use of the asset and from its ultimate disposal and the College applies the appropriate discount rate to those
future cash flows.

1.12 Employee benefits

The College contributes to the Government Employees Pension Fund. The Government Employees Pension Fund define
an amount of pension benefits that employees will receive on retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors such as
age, years of service and compensation. However, the College has no legal or constructive obligation to pay those future
benefits as its only obligation is to pay the contributions as they fall due. If the College ceases to employ members of the
state plan, it will have no obligation to pay the benefits earned by its own employees in previous years.

For this reason, the Government Employees Pension Fund is a defined contribution plan. For defined contribution plans,
the College pays contributions to a publicly administered pension insurance plan on a mandatory and contractual basis.
The College has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are recognised as
employee benefit expenses when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash
refund or a deduction in the future payment is available.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than termination benefits) that are due to be settled within
twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service.

When an employee has rendered service to the College during a reporting period, the College recognises the undiscounted
amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service:

Ÿ as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any amount already paid. If the amount already paid exceeds the
undiscounted amount of the benefits, the College recognises that excess as an asset (prepaid expense) to the
extent that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payments or a cash refund; and

Ÿ as an expense, unless another Standard requires or permits the inclusion of the benefits in the cost of an asset.

The College recognises the expected cost of bonus, incentive and performance related payments when the College has a
present legal or constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past events and a reliable estimate of the
obligation can be made. A present obligation exists when the College has no realistic alternative but to make the payments.

Other long-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than post-employment benefits and termination benefits)
that are not due to be settled within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related
service.

DHET/PDE management fee

In terms of the CET Act and DHET Circulars, non-management personnel (lecturing and support staff) of the College who
elected to be appointed and remunerated through the Department of Higher Education and Training (DHET) have migrated
to DHET and are DHET employees. Non-management personnel who did not elect to be transferred to DHET payroll
remain employees of the College.

Management personnel was previously (and continue to be) remunerated through PERSAL and not from College funds,
and this constitutes services in kind which are recognised at the cash value of the services to the State. The income is
recognised as "Services in Kind" as part of revenue from non-exchange transactions, and the expense is recognised as
"DHET management fees".

For the period 1 April to 31 December 2015 Management and non-management personnel who elected to be transferred
are remunerated by DHET via Persal. The remuneration of these personnel cannot be classified as an employee expense
of the College and is therefore, classified as "DHET management fee". The income is recognised as "services in kind" as
part of revenue from non-exchange transactions.
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1.13 Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised when:
Ÿ the College has a present obligation as a result of a past event;
Ÿ it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to

settle the obligation; and
Ÿ a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the present obligation at
the reporting date.

Where the effect of time value of money is material, the amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Provisions are reversed if it
is no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required, to
settle the obligation.

Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

If the College has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation (net of recoveries) under the contract is recognised and
measured as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events, and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events not wholly within the control of the College.

A contingent liability is:

- A possible obligation that arises from past event, and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the College; or 

- A present obligation that arises from past events but it is not recognised because:
Ÿ It is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required

to settle the obligation; or
Ÿ The amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised, but are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

1.14 Commitments

Items are classified as commitments when the College has committed itself to future transactions that will normally result in
the outflow of cash.

Generally, a commitment arises when a decision is made to incur a liability e.g. a purchase contract. Such a decision is
evidenced by, but not limited to, actions taken to determine the amount of the eventual resource outflow or a reliable
estimate e.g. a quote, and conditions to be satisfied to establish an obligation e.g. delivery schedules. These preconditions
ensure that the information relating to commitments is relevant and capable of reliable measurement.

The notes to the financial statements must disclose the nature and amount of each material individual expenditure
commitment  and each material class of capital expenditure commitment as well as non-cancellable operating leases
contracted for at the reporting date. Commitments for the supply of inventories, where a liability under a contract has not yet
been recognised, do not require disclosure as a commitment.

Disclosures are required in respect of unrecognised contractual commitments.

Commitments for which disclosure is necessary to achieve a fair presentation should be disclosed in a note to the financial
statements, if both the following criteria are met:

Ÿ Contracts should be non-cancellable or only cancellable at significant cost (for example, contracts for computer
or building maintenance services); and

Ÿ Contracts should relate to something other than the routine, steady, state business of the College – therefore
salary commitments relating to employment contracts or social security benefit commitments are excluded.
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1.14 Commitments (continued)

The College discloses future lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases for each of the following periods:

- No later than one year;
- Later than one year and not later than five years, and
- Later than five years.

1.15 Revenue from exchange transactions

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting period when those inflows result
in an increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from government.

An exchange transaction is one in which the College receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and directly
gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of goods, services or use of assets) to the other party in exchange.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing
parties in an arm’s length transaction.

Measurement

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.

Rendering of services

When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenue associated with
the transaction is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. The outcome
of a transaction can be estimated reliably when all the following conditions are satisfied:

Ÿ the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
Ÿ it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the

College;
Ÿ the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date can be measured reliably; and
Ÿ the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured reliably.

When services are performed by an indeterminate number of acts over a specified time frame, revenue is recognised on a
straight line basis over the specified time frame unless there is evidence that some other method better represents the
stage of completion. When a specific act is much more significant than any other acts, the recognition of revenue is
postponed until the significant act is executed.

When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is
recognised only to the extent of the expenses recognised that are recoverable.

Tuition, residence and related fees

Tuition, residence and related fees are recognised as income at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable in
the period to which they relate (academic year). 

Interest and dividends

Revenue arising from the use by others of the College's assets yielding interest and dividends or similar distributions is
recognised when:

Ÿ It is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the
College, and

Ÿ The amount of the revenue can be measured reliably.

Interest is recognised, in surplus or deficit, using the effective interest rate method.

1.16 Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Non-exchange transactions are transactions that are not exchange transactions. In a non-exchange transaction, a College
either receives value from another College without directly giving approximately equal value in exchange, or gives value to
another College without directly receiving approximately equal value in exchange.
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1.16 Revenue from non-exchange transactions (continued)

Restrictions on transferred assets are stipulations that limit or direct the purposes for which a transferred asset may be
used, but do not specify that future economic benefits or service potential is required to be returned to the transferor if not
deployed as specified.

Stipulations on transferred assets are terms in laws or regulation, or a binding arrangement, imposed upon the use of a
transferred asset by entities external to the reporting College.

The taxable event is the event that the government, legislature or other authority has determined will be subject to taxation.

Transfers are inflows of future economic benefits or service potential from non-exchange transactions, other than taxes.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised as income over the periods necessary to match them with the related costs that they are
intended to compensate.

A government grant that becomes receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the College with no future related costs is recognised as income of the period in
which it becomes receivable.

Grants related to income are presented as a credit in the surplus or deficit (separately).

Grants, gifts and donations (other than services in-kind) are recognised when the definition of an asset is met and the
recognition criteria of an asset are satisfied. 
For grants, gifts and donations received without conditions attached, revenue is recognised when the asset is recognised.
For grants, gifts and donations received that have conditions attached to it, a liability will be recognised to the extent that
the conditions have not been met, and will be reduced as the conditions are satisfied with a corresponding increase in
revenue.

Private grants

Private grants, gifts and donations are recognised as income at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable in
the period to which they relate. Any such income is recognised as income in the financial period when the College is
entitled to use those funds. Therefore, funds that will not be used until some specified future period occurrence are deferred
to deferred income and released to the income statement as the College becomes entitled to the funds.

Grants received to compensate for expenses to be incurred are often prescriptive in nature and therefore is recognised over
a certain period under the terms of the grant. Prescriptive grant income is recognised with reference to the stage of
completion at the reporting date. If the stage of completion cannot be measured reliably, the recognition of this income is
limited to the expenses incurred. The balance is recognised as deferred income in the statement of financial position.

Services in-kind

In terms of the CET Act and DHET Circular 1 of  2015, with effect from 1 April 2015, all non-management personnel
(lecturing and support staff) of the College whom elected to be appointed and remunerated through the Department of
Higher Education and Training (DHET) have migrated to DHET and are DHET employees. Non-management personnel
whom did not elect to be transferred to DHET payroll remain employees of the College. For the period 1 January to 31
March 2015, all these employees still remained employees of the College.

Management personnel was previously (and continue to be) remunerated through PERSAL and not from College funds,
and this constitutes services in kind which are recognised at the cash value of the services to the State. The income is
recognised as "Services in Kind" as part of revenue from non-exchange transactions, and the expense is recognised as
"DHET management fees".

For the period 1 April to 31 December 2015 Management and non-management personnel whom elected to be transferred
are remunerated by DHET via Persal. The remuneration of these personnel cannot be classified as an employee expense
of the College and is therefore, classified as "DHET management fee". The income is recognised as "services in kind" as
part of revenue from non-exchange transactions.

No other services in-kind are recognised.

31



Flavius Mareka TVET College
(Registration number 440000300)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020

Accounting Policies

1.17 Accounting by principals and agents

Identification

An agent is an entity that has been directed by another entity (a principal), through a binding arrangement, to undertake
transactions with third parties on behalf of the principal and for the benefit of the principal.

A principal is an entity that directs another entity (an agent), through a binding arrangement, to undertake transactions with
third parties on its behalf and for its own benefit.

A principal-agent arrangement results from a binding arrangement in which one entity (an agent), undertakes transactions
with third parties on behalf, and for the benefit of, another entity (the principal).

Identifying whether an entity is a principal or an agent

When the college is party to a principal-agent arrangement, it assesses whether it is the principal or the agent in accounting
for revenue, expenses, assets and/or liabilities that result from transactions with third parties undertaken in terms of the
arrangement.

The assessment of whether a college is a principal or an agent requires the college to assess whether the transactions it
undertakes with third parties are for the benefit of another entity or for its own benefit.

Recognition

The college, as a principal, recognises revenue and expenses that arise from transactions with third parties in a principal-
agent arrangement in accordance with the requirements of the relevant Standards of GRAP.

The college, as an agent, recognises only that portion of the revenue and expenses it receives or incurs in executing the
transactions on behalf of the principal in accordance with the requirements of the relevant Standards of GRAP.

The college recognises assets and liabilities arising from principal-agent arrangements in accordance with the requirements
of the relevant Standards of GRAP.

1.18 Related parties

A related party is a person or an entity with the ability to control or jointly control the other party, or exercise significant
influence over the other party, or vice versa, or an entity that is subject to common control, or joint control. In considering
each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the relationship, and not merely the legal
form.

Significant influence may be exercised in several ways, usually by representation on the governing body but also, for
example, by participation in the policy-making process, material transactions between entities within an economic entity,
interchange of managerial personnel or dependence on technical information.

Significant influence may be gained by an ownership interest, statute or agreement or otherwise. With regard to an
ownership interest, significant influence is presumed in accordance with the definition contained in the Standard of GRAP
on Investments in Associates.

Management are those persons responsible for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the College, including
those charged with the governance of the College in accordance with legislation, in instances where they are required to
perform such functions.

Close members of the family of a person are considered to be those family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that management in their dealings with the College.

Only transactions with related parties:
-   not at arm’s length; or
-   not in the ordinary course of business

are disclosed.
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1.19 Events after the reporting date

Events after the reporting date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the reporting date
and the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.  Two types of events can be identified:

- Those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting date (adjusting events after reporting date); and
- Those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting date (non-adjusting events after reporting date).

Reporting date means the date of the last day of the reporting period to which the financial statements relate.  The reporting
date of the College is 31 December 2020.

The College adjusts the amounts recognised in its financial statements to reflect adjusting events after the reporting date. 
The College does not adjust the amounts recognised in its financial statements to reflect non-adjusting events after the
reporting date.
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2. New standards and interpretations

2.1 Standards and interpretations issued, but not yet effective

The following Standards of GRAP and / or amendments thereto have been approved by the Accounting Standards Board,
but will only become effective in future periods or have not been given an effective date by the Minister of Finance. The
College has not early-adopted any of these new Standards or amendments thereto, but has referred to them for guidance in
the development of accounting policies in accordance with GRAP 3 as read with Directive 5: 

Title of the standard and nature of impending changes in
accounting policy and expected impact:

Effective date
(Periods starting on or
after)

Financial year in which
the College plans to
apply the Standard
initially:

Ÿ GRAP 32 Service Concession Arrangements: Grantor: It is
expected that there will be no impact. 

01 April 2019 It is not expected that the
Standard will be applied

Ÿ GRAP 108 Statutory Receivables: No changes to
recognition and measurement are expected, but additional
disclosures and separate classification in the notes will be
done on adoption. 

01 April 2019 2020 Financial year

Ÿ GRAP 109 Accounting by Principals and Agents:  No
changes to recognition and measurement are expected, but
additional disclosures in the notes will be done on adoption. 

01 April 2019 2020 Financial year

Ÿ GRAP 110 Living and Non-living Resources: The expected
impact has not been determined yet and is unknown at this
stage. 

Not yet set Not yet set

Ÿ IGRAP 18 Interpretation of the Standard of GRAP on
recognition and derecognition of land: No changes to
recognition and measurement are expected, but additional
disclosures in the notes will be done on adoption. 

01 April 2019 2020 Financial year

Ÿ Guideline on Accounting for Arrangements Undertaken in
terms of the National Housing Programme: None 

01 April 2019 It is not expected that the
Standard will be applied

Ÿ Guideline on The Application of Materiality to Financial
Statements: No changes to recognition and measurement
are expected, but additional disclosures in the notes will be
done on adoption. 

01 April 2020 2021 Financial year

Ÿ GRAP 18 : Segment Reporting 01 April 2020 2021 Financial year

Ÿ GRAP 34: Separate Financial Statements 01 April 2020 It is not expected that the
Standard will be applied 

Ÿ GRAP 35: Consolidated Financial Statements 01 April 2020 It is not expected that the
Standard will be applied 

Ÿ GRAP 36: Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures 01 April 2020 2021 Financial year

Ÿ GRAP 37: Joint Arrangements 01 April 2020 2021 Financial year

Ÿ GRAP 38: Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 01 April 2020 2021 Financial year

Ÿ IGRAP 20: Accounting for Adjustments to Revenue 01 April 2020 2021 Financial year
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3. Inventories

Inventory text books 2,789,010 2,614,213
Inventories cartridges 35,807 28,235

2,824,817 2,642,448

Inventories recognised as an expense during the year
Textbooks 3,010,527 3,065,842
Cartridges 477,267 469,858

3,487,794 3,535,700

Inventory recognised as an expense is included in note 23 - Administration expenses and note 26 - Education services.

There was no inventory write down during the year.

Inventory pledged as security

No inventories held by the College are pledged as security.

4. Receivables from exchange transactions

Student receivables 3,257,706 3,982,445
Other receivables 3,405,728 4,068,111

6,663,434 8,050,556

No receivables from exchange transactions were pledged as security for any financial liability of the College.

The carrying value of receivables from exchange transactions approximates their fair value, due to their short term nature.

Credit quality of trade and other receivables

The credit quality of trade and other receivables from exchange transactions are determined and monitored with reference to
historical payment trends. Accordingly the credit quality of the customers included in the balance of trade and other receivables
from exchange transactions is determined internally through application of the College's own credit policy.

Other receivables

The ageing of Other receivables are as follows:

Current (0 - 30 days) 680,438 3,372,045
30 - 90 days 910,184 7,080
90-120 days - -
120+ days 1,943,019 832,414
Impairment (127,913) (143,428)

3,405,728 4,068,111

* See Note  40 & 35
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4. Receivables from exchange transactions (continued)

Student receivables impaired

The detail of the Student receivables are as follows:

Student receivables 16,995,608 17,500,367
Receivables impairment (13,737,902) (13,517,922)

3,257,706 3,982,445

The ageing of Student receivables is as follows:

0 - 120 days 5,538,630 5,848,814
121+ days 11,456,978 11,651,553
Impairment (13,737,902) (13,517,922)

3,257,706 3,982,445

Reconciliation of provision for impairment of Student receivables

Opening balance (13,517,922) (12,273,182)
Provision for impairment (3,102,307) (3,673,506)
Utilisation 2,882,327 2,428,766

(13,737,902) (13,517,922)

5. Receivables from non-exchange transactions

Maintenance grant debtor 1,860 1,860
Unauthorised debit orders 64,942 59,708
NSF grant debtor 271,321 -
Payables with debit balances 45,299 -
Accrued income 124,130 202,331

507,552 263,899

No receivables from non-exchange transactions were pledged as security for any financial liability of the College.

The carrying value of receivables from non-exchange transactions approximates their fair value, due to their short term
nature.

* See Note  40 & 35
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6. Statutory receivables

DHET debtor - subsidy 13,274,202 18,894,527
COS grant debtor - 785,515

13,274,202 19,680,042

The following statutory receivables have been identified by the College:

    - DHET debtor - subsidy;
    - COS grant debtor.

Statutory receivables past due but not impaired

The College does not have any statutory receivables which are past due but not impaired.

Statutory receivables pledged as security

No statutory receivables were pledged as security for any financial liability of the College.

7. Prepayments

NSF grant expenses paid in advance 17,135 1,264,810

8. Investments

Fixed deposit 877,013 824,590

The College has a fixed deposit held with ABSA Bank Limited. The investment bears interest at a rate of 3.63% 
(2019: 7.32%) per annum. The investment has a maturity period of 6 months.

Pledged as security

No investments of the College were pledged as security.

* See Note  40 & 35
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9. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

Cash on hand 9,058 9,074
Bank balances 43,988,904 42,519,813
Short-term deposits 9,706,831 3,176,582

53,704,793 45,705,469

The College had the following bank accounts

` `

Account description Account
number

  Bank statement balances Cash book balances

31 December
2020

31 December
2019

31 December
2018

31 December
2020

31 December
2019

31 December
2018

Bank - Flavius Mareka 520 153 306 948,646 273,892 2,040,031 948,646 273,892 2,040,031
Bank - Call Account 920 475 6351 6,494,868 6,054,537 3,683,040 6,494,868 6,054,537 3,683,040
Sasolburg - Student Dep 405 668 6636 40,520 87,423 120,069 40,520 87,423 120,069
Kroonstad - Student Dep 404 952 0229 47,142 21,806 33,181 47,142 21,806 33,181
Bank - NSF 713 546 240 3,938,219 230,106 3,437,058 3,938,219 230,106 3,437,058
Bank - Kroonstad Cheque
Account

970 830 367 478 950 701 478 950 701

Bank - SLA 2012-2013 406 074 9199 253 212 607 253 212 607
Bank - Lotto Account 407 653 6651 71,409 70,399 68,689 71,409 70,399 68,689
Bank - Capex 407 427 1338 265 219 259 265 219 259
Petty Cash - Sasolburg - - - - 6,000 6,000 6,009
Petty Cash - Kroonstad - - - - 3,058 3,074 3,111
Bank - Sasolburg Petty
Cash

916 550 2457 654 249 - 654 249 238

Intermediate Petty Cash
Sasolburg

- - - - - - 4

Intermediate Credit Card 4550 1900
3024 1033

12,253 5,000 5,000 12,253 5,000 5,000

Intermediate Credit Card 4550 1900
3024 0019

2,395 9,040 24,287 2,395 9,040 24,287

Flavius Money Market 914 906 8221 8,103,082 1,768,627 8,393,637 8,103,082 1,768,627 8,393,637
Money Market 916 666 7987 577,250 543,766 505,246 577,250 543,766 505,246
GEHS Account 207 619 9069 - 864,188 696,959 1,026,499 864,188 696,959
Maintenance account 409 489 9209 31,593,630 35,108,054 17,339,908 31,593,630 35,108,054 17,339,908
NSF- COS account 409 490 1133 838,171 657,924 8,443,340 838,171 657,924 8,443,340
Intermediate transfer
account

- - - - - 23,396

Other - - - 1 3 (4)

Total 52,669,235 45,696,392 44,792,012 53,704,793 45,705,469 44,824,766

* See Note  40 & 35
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10. Property, plant and equipment

2020 2019

Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated
depreciation

and
accumulated
impairment

Carrying value Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated
depreciation

and
accumulated
impairment

Carrying value

Land 15,904,951 - 15,904,951 15,904,951 - 15,904,951
Buildings and fixed structures 279,305,373 (41,891,981) 237,413,392 270,450,542 (36,375,423) 234,075,119
Plant and machinery 11,862,079 (4,081,686) 7,780,393 10,131,352 (2,979,416) 7,151,936
Furniture and fixtures 11,495,903 (6,613,819) 4,882,084 11,541,277 (5,998,206) 5,543,071
Motor vehicles 2,343,526 (693,321) 1,650,205 2,491,077 (629,913) 1,861,164
IT equipment 18,546,589 (11,353,469) 7,193,120 16,364,223 (10,133,520) 6,230,703
College infrastructure 14,063,424 (3,047,357) 11,016,067 14,027,874 (2,656,149) 11,371,725
Sporting facilities 7,336,309 (3,341,103) 3,995,206 7,298,809 (2,526,044) 4,772,765
Leased office equipment 1,760,775 (586,925) 1,173,850 - - -
Emergency equipment 245,695 (177,637) 68,058 245,695 (153,055) 92,640

Total 362,864,624 (71,787,298) 291,077,326 348,455,800 (61,451,726) 287,004,074

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2020

Opening
balance

Additions Disposals Depreciation Total

Land 15,904,951 - - - 15,904,951
Buildings and fixed structures 234,075,119 8,854,831 - (5,516,558) 237,413,392
Plant and machinery 7,151,936 1,899,879 (38,246) (1,233,176) 7,780,393
Furniture and fixtures 5,543,071 165,863 (71,934) (754,916) 4,882,084
Motor vehicles 1,861,164 13,000 (109,531) (114,428) 1,650,205
IT equipment 6,230,703 2,830,401 (108,963) (1,759,021) 7,193,120
College infrastructure 11,371,725 35,550 - (391,208) 11,016,067
Sporting facilities 4,772,765 37,500 - (815,059) 3,995,206
Leased office equipment - 1,760,775 - (586,925) 1,173,850
Emergency equipment 92,640 - - (24,582) 68,058

287,004,074 15,597,799 (328,674) (11,195,873) 291,077,326
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10. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2019

Opening
balance

Additions Disposals Depreciation Total

Land 15,904,951 - - - 15,904,951
Buildings and fixed structures 239,528,580 38,065 - (5,491,526) 234,075,119
Plant and machinery 1,952,865 6,045,182 (37,575) (808,536) 7,151,936
Furniture and fixtures 6,386,320 159,735 (12,651) (990,333) 5,543,071
Motor vehicles 1,704,004 290,000 (13,668) (119,172) 1,861,164
IT equipment 6,167,329 1,668,590 (66,205) (1,539,011) 6,230,703
College infrastructure 12,013,539 - (228,906) (412,908) 11,371,725
Sporting facilities 5,140,226 - - (367,461) 4,772,765
Emergency equipment 117,222 - - (24,582) 92,640

288,915,036 8,201,572 (359,005) (9,753,529) 287,004,074

A copy of the College's fixed asset register is available for inspection at the registered office.

Land totalling R 15,904,951 (2019: R 15,904,951) and buildings and fixed structures totaling R 202,595,794 
(2019: R 219,439,332) are not owned by the College but by the Free State Provincial Government. These assets are
controlled by the College and are therefore recognised according to the accounting policy for acquisition of assets in non-
exchange transactions as outlined in accounting policy 1.5.

Included in property, plant and equipment are 462 (2019: 1,606) minor assets with a nil carrying value at year end. The cost
price of these assets amount to R 248,438 (2019: R 2,040,005). These assets are not significant to the College's operations
and service delivery objectives.

During the year the condition of the assets, as well as their useful lives were reassessed. The conditions rating of the
assets had not changed and therefore no assets had been impaired.

Assets in process of being constructed

Cumulative expenditure included in carrying value - Buildings and fixed
structures

8,246,635 -

Pledged as security

There were no assets pledged as security for current year.

Assets subject to finance lease (Net carrying amount)

Leased office equipment 1,173,850 -

Change in accounting estimate

Various movable assets with original remaining useful lives varying between 1 - 2 years have been revised in the beginning of
the period to reflect a new depreciable amount and the actual pattern of service potential derived from these assets. Furniture
and fixtures original useful lives of 8 years increased to 15 years. IT equipment original useful lives of 7 years increased to 10
years. Plant and machinery original useful lives of 15 years decreased to 10 years. Sporting facilities original useful lives of 20
years decreased to 12 years.

The effect on the current and future periods will be an increase in the depreciation charge of R 241,247 in the current period
and an increase in the depreciation charge of R 284,458 over the future periods.

Depreciation - current year 241,247
Depreciation - future periods 284,458
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11. Intangible assets

2020 2019

Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated
amortisation

and
accumulated
impairment

Carrying value Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated
amortisation

and
accumulated
impairment

Carrying value

Computer software 533,310 (122,236) 411,074 533,310 (68,905) 464,405

Management estimates that intangible assets have a useful life of 10 years.

Included in intangible assets is 1 (2019: 1) software with a R1 carrying value at year end. The cost price of this asset
amounts to R 545,000 (2019: R 545,000). This asset had reached the end of its useful life, but is still used by the College in
its operations.

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2020

Opening
balance

Amortisation Total

Computer software 464,405 (53,331) 411,074

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2019

Opening
balance

Amortisation Total

Computer software 517,736 (53,331) 464,405

Pledged as security

There were no intangible assets pledged as security for any liabilities in the current year.

12. Finance lease obligation

Minimum lease payments due
 - within one year 681,783 -
 - in second to fifth year inclusive 681,783 -

1,363,566 -
less: future finance charges (132,330) -

Present value of minimum lease payments 1,231,236 -

Present value of minimum lease payments due
 - within one year 584,990 -
 - in second to fifth year inclusive 646,246 -

1,231,236 -

Non-current liabilities 646,246 -
Current liabilities 584,990 -

1,231,236 -

The finance lease represents rentals of photocopiers by the college. The lease is for the term of three years, commencing in
January 2020 and ending in December 2022. The lease repayments are linked to the prime rate and there is no escalation in
the lease payments. No contingent rent is payable. 
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13. Payables from exchange transactions

Bonus accrual (refer to breakdown below) 871,006 716,519
Leave pay accrual (refer to breakdown below) 439,364 180,692
GEHS Creditor 1,088,370 864,188
Third party creditors 3,404,438 2,527,720
Accrued expenses 499,490 1,028,562
External debtors with credit balances 3,048 2,600
Student debtors with credit balances 2,749,575 4,083,776
Trade payables 1,098,094 2,586,365
Unallocated deposits received 1,012,007 1,164,515

11,165,392 13,154,937

Bonus accrual
Opening balance 716,519 667,812
Raised during the year 871,006 716,520
Utilised during the year (716,519) (667,813)

871,006 716,519

Leave pay accrual
Opening balance 180,692 117,070
Raised during the year 1,121,949 885,778
Utilised during the year (863,277) (822,156)

439,364 180,692

The carrying value of payables approximates their fair value, due to its short term nature.

Government Employees Housing Scheme (GEHS)

In terms of PSCBC Resolution 7 0f 2015 all employees (employed before 27 May 2015) who are eligible to receive the housing
allowance but do not own a house shall continue to receive an allowance of R 900 per month. The difference of R 300 between
the total new housing allowance of R 1,200 (as from July 2015) and the R 900 shall be diverted into a savings account
(investment account) to host the funds of the rental contributors. This account will be interest bearing. The bank charges will be
diverted to the main account.  All employees employed after 27 May 2015 that are renting will receive R 1,200 as a benefit, but
the total amount is diverted monthly into the savings account.  Employees will have access to the accumulated funds in the
savings account once proof of ownership of property is provided.

This amount increased to R 1,276.00 from 01 July 2017. 

From 01 July 2019 the amount increased to R 1,398.35 with a total amount of R 498.35 diverted into the savings account. From
01 July 2020, the amount increased to R1,456.94, with a total amount of R556.94 diverted into the savings account.
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14. Payables from non-exchange transactions

COS grant creditor - 785,515
Maintenance grant 1,860 1,860
Bursary creditors 2,272,374 5,985,652
NSF grant creditor 271,321 112,500
Bursary allocations due to NSFAS 2,470,570 2,303,476

5,016,125 9,189,003

15. Unspent conditional grants and receipts

Unspent grants and receipts comprises of:

Unspent conditional grants and receipts
Lotto allocation 71,409 70,399
NSF grant 4,128,153 1,382,415
COS grant 2,422,106 3,030,290

6,621,668 4,483,104

Movement during the year

Balance at the beginning of the year 4,483,104 14,806,478
Additions during the year 11,169,459 6,862,662
Utilised during the year (9,030,895) (17,186,036)

6,621,668 4,483,104

See note 20 for reconciliation of government grants and subsidies.

16. Grant received in advance

The College received from the Department of Higher Education their 2019 allocation in respect of COS in December 2018.

COS Grant received in advance - 6,044,601
Income recognition during the year - (6,044,601)

- -
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17. Tuition and related fees 

Students - NCV 8,017,354 4,883,574
Students - Report 191 14,450,246 21,051,725
Skills and Learnership fees 5,940,354 8,634,280
Other fees 158,040 264,970

28,565,994 34,834,549

Tuition fees payable by Students or other funding of which:

Students - NCV 1,891,974 2,247,904
Students - Report 191 5,505,415 10,439,900
Skills and Learnership fees 5,940,354 8,634,280
Other fees 158,040 264,970

13,495,783 21,587,054

Tuition fees paid by NSFAS Bursaries

Students - NCV 6,125,380 2,635,670
Students - Report 191 8,944,831 10,611,825

15,070,211 13,247,495

18. Sundry income

Hair care income 54,450 148,470
Student income 4,131 11,724
WSP grants received 251,789 44,633
Work integrated learning income 248,063 41,580
Staff income 6,486 3,046
Income realised from unallocated income 272,333 150,730
Rental and Hostel income 694,322 2,050,983
Sport income 9,598 49,140
Other income 502,765 888,481

2,043,937 3,388,787

19. Interest revenue

Interest revenue
Bank 808,133 627,142
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20. Government grants and subsidies

Departmental subsidies 44,031,358 43,268,662
College fee allocation - 237,682
Maintenance grant 6,997,292 14,043,199
NSF grant 8,403,846 9,040,299
COS grant 626,089 8,144,836
COVID-19 tuition grant (refer to note 16) 7,693,490 -

67,752,075 74,734,678

Reconciliation of government grants and subsidies

Departmental subsidies

Current year receipts 44,031,358 43,268,662
Subsidy transferred to revenue (44,031,358) (43,268,662)

- -

Lotto allocation

Balance unspent at beginning of year 70,399 68,689
Current year receipts 1,010 1,710
Conditions met - transferred to revenue - -

71,409 70,399

Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 15).

College fee allocation grant

Balance unspent at beginning of year - 237,682
Conditions met - transferred to revenue - (237,682)

- -

Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 15).

The College fee allocation is utilise to subsidise the fee adjustments for the poor and the missing middle students to a
maximum of 6%.

National Skills Fund (NSF)

Balance unspent at beginning of year 1,382,415 3,787,272
Current year receipts 11,122,065 6,505,815
Interest 28,479 130,528
Conditions met - transferred to revenue (8,403,846) (9,040,300)
Payment in advance - (1,264,810)
Reallocation to prepayment- conditions not met - 1,264,810
Other (960) (900)

4,128,153 1,382,415

Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 15).

The objective for the National Skills Fund is to assist the College and DHET in improving the capacity of the Post School
Education and Training System in order to meet the needs of the country.

The funds will be utilised to roll out the Occupational Programmes for which the College is accredited. 
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20. Government grants and subsidies (continued)

Maintenance grant

Current year receipts 6,997,292 14,043,199
Subsidy transferred to revenue (6,997,292) (14,043,199)

- -

Centres of Specialisation (COS) grant

Balance unspent at beginning of year 3,030,290 10,950,517
Interest 17,905 224,609
Conditions met - transferred to revenue (626,089) (8,144,836)

2,422,106 3,030,290

Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 15).

The COS grant is utilised for the implementation of the Centres of Specialisation Programme specialising in Electrical and
Plumbing trades.

COVID-19 tuition grant

Current year receipts 7,693,490 -
Subsidy transferred to revenue (7,693,490) -

- -

Government and Persal grants

The College receives government subsidies as per Funding norms for operating expenditure.

The Persal grant is kept at the Department to cover salaries of employees paid by the department and those employees in
the employment of the Department. Refer to note 22.
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21. Revenue

Tuition fees (refer to note 17) 28,565,994 34,834,549
Student fees earned 888,520 1,318,088
Recoveries 291,640 443,964
Insurance income 4,524 163,344
Sundry income (refer to note 18) 2,043,937 3,388,787
Interest received (refer to note 19) 808,133 627,142
Government grants and subsidies (refer to note 20) 67,752,075 74,734,678
Service received in kind (refer to note 22) 56,374,459 54,251,020

156,729,282 169,761,572

The amount included in revenue arising from exchanges of goods or
services are as follows:
Tuition fees 28,565,994 34,834,549
Student fees earned 888,520 1,318,088
Recoveries 291,640 443,964
Insurance reimbursement income 4,524 163,344
Sundry income 2,043,937 3,388,787
Interest received 808,133 627,142

32,602,748 40,775,874

The amount included in revenue arising from non-exchange transactions
is as follows:
Taxation revenue
Transfer revenue
Government grants and subsidies 67,752,075 74,734,678
Service received in kind 56,374,459 54,251,020

124,126,534 128,985,698
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22. Personnel expenses and DHET management fee

Basic salaries and wages 23,632,704 24,448,528
Leave pay accrual 258,673 63,621
Contributions for UIF, SDL and pensions 3,520,244 3,317,640
Benefits and allowances 2,480,671 3,152,892
Performance and other bonuses 1,868,141 2,100,624
Other employee related costs 4,341,437 2,958,151
Bonus accrual 154,485 48,704

36,256,355 36,090,160

DHET management fee cost

Remuneration of key management

Remuneration of Principal
TS Letho (Principal) 1,173,586 1,174,128
Remuneration of Deputy - Principals
FM Chechile (Deputy Principal Academic Affairs) 888,377 865,130
A le Roux (Deputy Principal Finance) 915,643 936,360
R Singh (Deputy Principal Registrar and SSS) 915,643 851,055
J Tema (Deputy Principal Corporate Services) 960,441 962,462

4,853,690 4,789,135

Basic salaries 3,383,150 3,255,009
Bonuses 362,536 429,596
Pension fund contributions 439,808 423,150
Other benefits 668,196 681,380

4,853,690 4,789,135
DHET lecturing and support 51,520,769 49,461,885

56,374,459 54,251,020

Total personnel expenses and DHET management fee 92,630,814 90,341,180

Management personnel was previously (and will continue to be) remunerated via PERSAL and not from College funds. In
terms of the CET Act and DHET circular 1 of 2015, with effect from 1st of April 2015, non management  personnel (lecturing
and support staff) whom elected to be appointed and remunerated by the Departments of Higher Education and Training
(DHET) have migrated to DHET payroll and are now DHET employees. Non management employees whom did not elect to
be transferred to DHET remain employees of the College.

The remuneration of these personnel represents services in kind and is recognised as such as part of revenue from non-
exchange transactions. 
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23. Administration expenses

Bank charges 314,338 537,475
Cleaning services 1,028,153 782,481
Council expenses - Refer to note 31 435,225 446,826
Courier 57,627 113,854
Human resources development and training 907,893 579,611
Insurance 804,711 768,735
IT services 1,702,860 1,488,388
Marketing and advertising 338,994 349,677
Membership and licence fees 689,507 565,184
Municipal services 2,218,086 2,903,502
Other 526,869 338,908
Security services 4,538,107 2,291,405
Stationery and printing 1,169,723 1,200,123
Telephone 678,610 632,831
Lease rentals on operating lease and photocopying - 702,190

15,410,703 13,701,190

24. Finance costs

Finance leases 144,115 -

25. Repairs and maintenance

Repairs and maintenance 5,825,911 1,575,239

26. Education services

COS Grant Expenditure 181,806 3,525,731
Improvement of results 152,430 220,652
Learning material 3,494,436 3,655,908
Skills and learnership expenses 10,861,688 11,909,214
Student registration expenses 401,849 331,929
Student support expenses 456,963 692,666
Work integrated learning expenses 250 270,000

15,549,422 20,606,100

27. General expenses

COVID-19 expenses (refer to note 39) 876,553 -
Safety compliance 27,953 40,624
Functions and awards 233,510 157,902
Travel - local 237,880 762,983
Compensation fund 62,566 64,204
Event workshop expenses 464,744 797,256

1,903,206 1,822,969
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28. Cash generated from operations

Surplus 6,249,676 24,808,652
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 11,249,204 9,949,383
Loss on sale of assets 270,058 209,673
Finance costs - Finance leases 144,115 -
Debt impairment 3,129,965 3,724,581
Leave pay accrual 258,672 63,622
Bonus accrual 154,488 48,708
Accrued expenses (529,072) 1,028,562
Services received in kind (56,374,459) (54,251,020)
DHET management fee included in personnel expenses 56,374,459 54,251,020
Non cash items (2018 Housing allowance) - (47,553)
Changes in working capital:
Inventories (182,369) (756,517)
Receivables from exchange transactions (1,742,844) (7,128,926)
Receivables from non-exchange transactions (243,653) 9,065,034
Statutory receivables 6,405,840 (19,680,042)
Prepayments 1,247,675 (55,906)
Payables from exchange transactions (1,873,632) 380,854
Unspent conditional grants and receipts 2,138,564 (10,561,056)
Grant received in advance - (6,044,601)
Payables from non-exchange transactions (4,172,878) 3,987,112

22,503,809 8,991,580
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29. Commitments

Authorised capital expenditure

Already contracted for 
Ÿ Upgrading roofs and gutters 6,352,527 -
Ÿ Upgrading sports courts 2,138,876 -
Ÿ Upgrading existing stormwater facilities 5,079,836 -
Ÿ Supply and installation of high security fence 1,135,537 -

14,706,776 -

Total capital commitments
Already contracted for 14,706,776 -

Commitments will be financed by existing cash resources and internally generated funds.

Lease commitments

The finance lease represents rentals of photocopiers by the college. The lease is for the term of three years. The lease
repayments are linked to the prime rate and there is no escalation in the lease payments. No contingent rent is payable. 

Minimum lease payments due
 - within one year 681,783 -
 - in second to fifth year inclusive 681,783 -
 - later than five years - -

1,363,566 -
Less: future finance charges (132,330) -

1,231,236 -

Present value of minimum lease payments due
 - within one year 584,990 -
 - in second to fifth year inclusive 646,246 -

1,231,236 -
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30. Related parties

`

Relationships
Council Refer to Council's report note 
Controlling entity Department of Higher Education and Training
Other public entities under control of the Minister and DHET SETA's, All TVET's, NSF, and NSFAS 
Members of key management TS Letho (Principal)

FM Chechile (Deputy Principal Academic Affairs)
A le Roux (Deputy Principal Finance)
R Singh (Deputy Principal Registrar and SSS)
J Tema (Deputy Principal Corporate Services)

Related party transactions

DHET
Management, lecturing and support staff (Note 20 and 21) 56,374,459 54,251,020
Departmental Subsidies (Note 19) 44,031,358 43,268,662

Council remuneration

Council members are remunerated per TVET Circular HV dated 04 June 2019 and they are reimbursed for travel cost
incurred at a rate of R3,50 per kilometre and a sitting allowance. Council members do not receive any other remuneration.

Refer to note 31 for detail.

Key management remuneration

2020

Basic
salaries Bonuses 

Pension fund
contribution 

Other
benefits Total

Remuneration of Principal
Annual remuneration 704,090 58,674 91,532 319,290 1,173,586
Remuneration of Deputy - Principals
Deputy Principal - Academic 622,062 51,453 80,868 133,994 888,377
Deputy Principal - Finance 675,382 83,162 87,799 69,300 915,643
Deputy Principal - Registrar and SSS 675,382 83,162 87,799 69,300 915,643
Deputy Principal - Corporate Services 706,234 86,085 91,810 76,312 960,441

3,383,150 362,536 439,808 668,196 4,853,690

2019

Basic
salaries Bonuses 

Pension fund
contribution 

Other
benefits Total

Remuneration of Principal
Annual remuneration 695,389 58,674 90,401 329,664 1,174,128
Remuneration of Deputy - Principals
Deputy Principal - Academic 605,352 50,692 78,696 130,390 865,130
Deputy Principal - Finance 657,240 105,426 85,441 88,253 936,360
Deputy Principal - Registrar and SSS 604,923 105,426 78,640 62,066 851,055
Deputy Principal - Corporate Services 692,105 109,377 89,974 71,006 962,462

3,255,009 429,595 423,152 681,379 4,789,135
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31. Remuneration of Council

2020

Emoluments Total
Dr SJ Mohapi - Chairperson of Council 64,163 64,163
Dr CM Mabaso - Deputy Chairperson of Council 69,296 69,296
Mr D Charlie - Ministerial appointee and Chairperson: Planning Committee 7,068 7,068
Ms N Kumalo - Council Member and Chairperson of the Conditions of Employment
Committee

62,433 62,433

Mr PD Manoko - External member of ARC 43,430 43,430
Dr GJ Maseko - Ministerial appointee 45,762 45,762
Mr R Mbhalati - Council Member and Chairperson of the Audit/Risk Committee 26,551 26,551
Dr CN Mbileni-Morema -  Council Member: Donors 10,395 10,395
Mr MP Moremi - Ministerial appointee and Chairperson: Finance Committee 58,614 58,614
Mr MP Hlahane - Ministerial appointee 3,024 3,024
Mr TC Sithole - Ministerial appointee 22,372 22,372
Ms NP Jantjies - Ministerial appointee 560 560
Ms S Magubane - Ministerial appointee and Chairperson: Planning Committee 21,557 21,557

435,225 435,225

2019

Emoluments Total
Dr SJ Mohapi - Chairperson of Council 66,012 66,012
Dr CM Mabaso - Deputy Chairperson of Council 60,140 60,140
Mr D Charlie - Ministerial appointee and Chairperson: Planning Committee 72,217 72,217
Ms N Kumalo - Council Member and Chairperson of the Conditions of Employment
Committee

48,660 48,660

Mr PD Manoko - External member of ARC 4,735 4,735
Dr GJ Maseko - Ministerial appointee 34,856 34,856
Mr R Mbhalati - Council Member and Chairperson of the Audit/Risk Committee 63,750 63,750
Dr CN Mbileni-Morema - Council Member: Donors 37,109 37,109
Mr MP Moremi - Ministerial appointee and Chairperson: Finance Committee 59,347 59,347

446,826 446,826

Mr PD Manoko is the independent advisory of the Council on the Audit and Risk Committee and not a Council member.

* See Note  40 & 35
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32. Risk management

Financial risk management

Capital risk management:

The College`s objectives when managing capital which includes all items of capital funds as presented on the Statement of
Financial Position are to safeguard the ability of the College to continue as a going concern. In this regard, the College has
ensured a sound financial position by limiting exposure to debt and increasing investments and cash balances. This
position is managed through a comprehensive budgeting and review process each year.

Financial risk management:

The College`s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks; market risk (including interest rate risk) credit risk and
liquidity risk.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and investments and the availability of funding.

The college manages liquidity risk through an ongoing review of future commitments, credit facilities and a comprehensive
budgeting and review process.

The College has minimised risk of liquidity as shown by its sufficient cash and cash equivalents. The College manages a
cash budget that is continually updated and reported to the Department of Higher Education. 

The table below analyses the college’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at
the statement of financial position date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of
discounting is not significant.

At 31 December 2020 Less than 1
year

Between 1 and
2 years

Between 2 and
5 years

Over 5 years

Payables from exchange transactions 11,165,392 - - -

At 31 December 2019 Less than 1
year

Between 1 and
2 years

Between 2 and
5 years

Over 5 years

Payables from exchange transactions 13,154,937 - - -

Credit risk

Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents and trade and other receivables. The college only deposits
cash with major banks with high quality credit standing.

No credit limits were exceeded during the reporting period, and management does not expect any surplus from non-
performance by these counterparties.

The College`s maximum exposure to credit risk is presented by the carrying amount of these financial assets in the
statement of financial position.

Receivables comprise of outstanding student fees and other receivables from a number of customers.

The College is exposed to credit risk arising from student receivables related to outstanding fees. The risk is mitigated by
requiring students to pay an initial instalment in respect of tuition fees at registration and the regular monitoring of
outstanding fees. Students with outstanding balances from previous years of study are only permitted to renew their
registration after the settling of the outstanding amount. In addition the Funding from NSFAS also caters for student travel
and accommodation.

* See Note  40 & 35
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32. Risk management (continued)

Credit valuations are performed on financial condition of customers other than students. For more detail regarding the
nature of the specific credit risks associated with the individual areas, refer to notes for Trade and Other Receivables, Cash
and Cash equivalents and Other Financial assets.

`

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was 2020 2019
Receivables from exchange transactions 6,663,434 8,050,556
Investments 877,013 824,590
Cash and cash equivalents 53,704,793 45,705,469

61,245,240 54,580,615

The College establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of students
and other receivables.

Interest rate risk

The college has significant interest-bearing assets, and therefore its income and operating cash flows are exposed to
changes in market interest rates.

The College does not have significant interest bearing liabilities and therefore not exposed to significant interest rate risk in
respect of these liabilities. The College however has a best practice to pay creditors within agreed settlement periods to
avoid any interest rate exposures.

Interest bearing accounts

`

Financial instrument Current interest
rate

2020 2019

CAPEX (4074271338) %0.50 265 219
Fixed Deposit (2064486218) %3.63 877,013 824,590
Lotto Account (4076536651) %2.25 2,020 70,399
Kroonstad and Sasolburg - Student Dep %2.25 87,662 109,229
SLA 2012-2013 - 406 074 9199 %- 253 212
Call Account (920 475 6351) %2.40 6,494,868 6,054,537
Flavius - Money Market (9149068221) %4.20 8,103,082 1,768,627
Flavius Mareka (520 153 306) %- 948,646 273,892
Money Market (9166667987) %4.20 577,250 543,766
NSF (713 546 240) %1.00 3,938,219 230,106
Kroonstad cheque account (9 7083 0367) %- 478 950
Maintenance account (409 489 9209) %3.00 31,593,630 35,108,054
NSF- COS account (409 490 1133) %3.00 838,171 657,924
GEHS account (2076199069) %3.47 1,026,499 864,188
Average interest rate %2.26 54,488,056 46,506,693

A change of 1% in the interest rate at the reporting date would have (increased)/decreased the deficit by the amounts
shown below. This analysis as disclosed in the annual financial statements assumes that all other variables remain
constant.

Interest earning accounts

`

Financial instrument 2020 2019
Total investments 54,488,056 46,506,693
1% decrease to 1.26% (544,881) (465,067)
1% increase to 3.26% 544,881 465,067

* See Note  40 & 35
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33. Going concern

We draw attention to the fact that at 31 December 2020, the college had an accumulated surplus of R 345,322,925 and that
the college's total assets exceed its liabilities with R 345,322,925.

The College incurred a net surplus of R 6,249,676 (2019: surplus R 24,808,652). The College's current assets of
R 77,868,946 exceed the current liabilities of R 23,388,175.

The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This
basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of
liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.

Management believes that the College will be able to successfully continue its operations as funding is received from the
Department of Higher Education and Training. Management is of the opinion that the TVET sector is a priority focus area for
the Department  to attain its strategic objectives to provide quality technical and vocational education and training services
and increase academic achievement and success of students and therefore believes that the Department of Higher
Education and Training will continue to fund the College.

34. Events after the reporting period

The Council is not aware of any significant events subsequent to year end.
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35. Prior period errors

Receivables from exchange transactions, payables from non- exchange transactions and government grants

Learning deliveries on NSF project were not accounted invoiced in the previous financial year. This resulted in understatement
of payables from non-exchange transactions, receivables from exchange transactions and government grants and subsidies.
The error was corrected retrospectively.

Receivables from non-exchange transactions and unspent conditional grants and receipts

Salary expenditure was incorrectly paid out of the COS grant account instead of the main account. This resulted in
understatement of unspent conditional grant and understatement of receivable from non-exchange transaction. This error was
corrected retrospectively.

Payables from exchange transactions and personnel expenses and DHET management fee

Housing allowances were incorrectly accounted for in the 2018 and 2019 financial years. As a result, personnel expenses and
payables from exchange transactions were overstated in both 2018 and 2019 financial years. This error was corrected
retrospectively. 

Sundry income

This error relates to housing allowance contributions income that was incorrectly classified as housing allowance expense and
not other income, which resulted in understatement of housing allowance and other income. The error was corrected
retrospectively.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation and amortisation

Certain items of property, plant and equipment were not recognised in the previous financial years. This resulted in property,
plant and equipment and the related depreciation expense being understated. The error was corrected retrospectively.

The correction of the errors results in adjustments as follows:

Statement of financial position
Increase in receivables from exchange transactions 131,307
Increase in receivables from non-exchange transactions 785,515
Increase in property, plant and equipment 163,423
Decrease in payables from exchange transactions 129,641
Increase in payables from non-exchange transactions (898,015)
Increase in unspent conditional grants and receipts (673,015)
Increase in opening accumulated surplus -  (2018 prior period errors)* (125,295)

Effect on accumulated surplus (486,439)

Statement of financial performance
Increase in sundry income 106,154
Decrease in government grants and subsidies (673,015)
Decrease in personnel expenses and DHET management fee 71,039
Increase in depreciation and amortisation (9,424)
Decrease in debt impairment provision 18,807

Effect on surplus or deficit (486,439)

* See Note  40 & 35

57



Flavius Mareka TVET College
(Registration number 440000300)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020

Notes to the Financial Statements
2020 2019

Restated*
R R

35. Prior period errors (continued)

*Opening accumulated surplus (2018 prior period errors) comprises of:

Opening accumulated surplus (2018 prior period errors)
Increase in property, plant and equipment - cost 194,000
Increase in property, plant and equipment - accumulated depreciation (21,153)
Increase in housing allowances related to 2018 (47,552)

125,295

* See Note  40 & 35
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36. Comparative figures

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified. In the prior year, certain costs were classified as personnel expenses and
DHET management. These costs related to cleaning services. As a result, these costs were reclassified from personnel
expenses to administrative expenditure in the comparatives.

This reclassification was done in order to comply with the fair presentation of the annual financial statements. The effect of the
reclassification is as follows:

Statement of financial performance - extract

Notes Comparative
figures previously

reported

Reclassification Prior period
error

After
reclassification

Personnel expenses and DHET
management fee

22 (90,429,325) 17,106 71,039 (90,341,180)

Administration expenses 23 (13,684,084) (17,106) - (13,701,190)

Total (104,113,409) - 71,039 (104,042,370)

Statement of cash flows - extract

Comparative
figures previously

reported

Reclassification Prior period
error

After
reclassification

Employee costs (35,103,831) 17,106 - (35,086,725)
Suppliers (43,197,583) (17,106) - (43,214,689)

Total (78,301,414) - - (78,301,414)
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37. Variances in Budget Statement

37.1 Due to the COVID-19 pandemic the College didn't register any students for Semester 2 or Trimester 3.  
Subsequently no additional fees were generated for SRC or student card.

37.2 The budgeted amount is the net amount of students fees recovered and budget for impairment of the 2016 
outstanding debts. The difference is due to less recoveries received in January and February 2021 than expected
by the College based on historical assumptions.

37.3 The item was not budgeted for though income was received from insurance claims.

37.4 The declining and overall average interest rates on accounts resulted  in less interest generated from bank 
accounts. The interest on the grants is attributed to each grant.

37.5 The actual amount is inclusive of: 

(a) additional grants received from DHET;
(b) The NSFAS COVID tuition top up payment received to the amount of R7,693,490; and
(c) Income generated from grants for which the conditions of the grants were met. 

37.6 Due to COVID-19 pandemic, the budget for administration expenses was under-utilised as some of the college's 
administrative activities were reduced. 

37.7 Additional time spent on the 2019 audit due to the COVID-19 pandemic. 

37.8 Non-cash items not budgeted for.

37.9 Non-cash items not budgeted for.

37.10 Budgeting was concluded before the audit plan of the service provider for internal audit was approved. 
The consultant was used to provide assistance with industrial relations cases.

37.11 The projected total amount received on the CIEG grant was anticipated to be spent in the 2020 financial year as 
approvals were granted by the DHET on a number of projects. Due to the pandemic the supply chain management 
processes were delayed and projects could not be completed.

37.12 Over-budgeting for the COS project due to the assumption that a second intake on the project will be funded. Due 
to COVID-19 the second intake could not be concluded and the completion of both the COS and NSF projects had 
to be moved to 2021. Not all core educational budgets were exhausted due to online educational processes and 
less students that were enrolled for 2020.

37.13 Non-cash items not budgeted for. 

37.14 Additional expenses were incurred in the combating, prevention and adherence to COVID-19 protocols.
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38. Accounting by principals and agents

The College is a party to a principal-agent arrangement.

Details of the arrangement

The college entered into agreements with various SETAs to provide internships and learnerships on behalf of the various
SETAs offering different disciplines. The college act as an agent in the provision of learnerships and internship to students
whilst the SETAs are the principal. The principal provide the funds and monitoring of deliverables provided by the agent to the
students and is responsible for the quality of the training received by the students. The agent or college is responsible for the
placing and monitoring of students activities and training. In this arrangement, the college recognises the funds from the SETAs
on receipts as a payable until it is paid to the students as stipends or to the service provider who would have rendered a
service. In cases where the college has spent more than what was received from the SETAs, the amount above what was
received is accounted as a debtor. After the projected is completed, the college may get funds if catered for by the agreement.
These funds are accounted for as income in the form of Administration fees.

The college also act as an agent for NSFAS in the management of hostel allowances which are paid to the college by NSFAS
and then disbursed by the college to the students. No administration fee is charged for this service. The carrying values of the
resources held by the college on behalf of the SETAs and NSFAS at 31 December 2020 are as disclosed in notes 5,13 and 14
of these financial statements. There were no risks that were transferred from the various principals (SETAs and NSFAS) to the
college during the year.

NSFAS Allowances - 32,196,376
SETAs 13,518,528 9,160,186

13,518,528 41,356,562

The aggregate amount of revenue that the college recognised as compensation for the transactions carried out on behalf of the
SETAs (Principals) is disclosed in note 14 of the financial statements.

The following liabilities were incurred on behalf of a principal that have been recognised by the entity, as well as any
corresponding rights of reimbursement that have been recognised as assets.

SETAs 10,114,090 6,632,465
NSFAS Allowances - 28,119,299

10,114,090 34,751,764

The amounts are receivable as disclosed in note 4 of the annual financial statements.

39. COVID-19

After the declaration of the state of national disaster in March 2020 as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Government has
directed itself to reprioritise state efforts towards battling the pandemic and its devastating effects. Organs of state that provide
funding to the college have also been required to reprioritise their efforts in particular the budget, towards COVID-19
government priorities.

There was an in-year budget adjustment by National Treasury on TVET colleges due to the impact of COVID-19 on the South
African economy. The budget adjustment to the college's funding allocation resulted in an amount of R1,488,000 reprioritised
towards COVID-19 related activities. 
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40. Change in accounting policy

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting
Practice on a basis consistent with the prior year except for the adoption of the following new or revised standards.

In the current year the College adopted GRAP 108: Statutory receivables. This adoption resulted in a change in accounting
policy. The change in accounting policy was applied retrospectively.  

The change in accounting policy resulted in adjustments to the comparatives as follows:

Statement of financial position

Receivables from non-exchange transactions
Previously stated 19,158,426
Adjustment as a result of change in accounting policy (19,680,042)
Prior period errors 785,515

263,899

Statutory receivables
Previously stated -
Adjustment as a result of change in accounting policy 19,680,042

19,680,042

Cash flow statement

There is no effect on the cash flows from operating activities of the college due to the change in accounting policy.

* See Note  40 & 35
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1. Supplementary grant schedule

2020 2019

CIEG bank balance brought forward at 01/01/2019 35,287,569 17,423,494
Plus: Received in respect of previous year debtors 2,633,094 -
Total CIEG Grant funding received from the Department of Higher Education
and Training

5,577,154 17,128,543

Plus: Interest received on the CIEG dedicated bank account 1,420,138 1,691,562

Total CIEG funding received 44,917,955 36,243,599
Less: Bank charges / finance charges - -
Less: Expenditure paid in terms of approved work package approvals issued
by the Department of Higher Education and Training

(13,168,957) (1,026,804)

Less: Expenditure paid in terms of approved previous year creditors paid in
current year

(72,724) -

Total CIEG funds per dedicated CIEG bank account 31,676,274 35,216,795
Less: Committed expenditure not yet paid in terms approved work package
approvals issued by the Department of Higher Education and Training

1,860 70,774

Total AVAILABLE CIEG GRANT funding 31,678,134 35,287,569
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